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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Radhika Heights Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN AS BEST ON HEALTH LIMITED)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Radhika Heights Limited (“the Company”), 

which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021, and the Standalone 

statement of Profit and Loss, (statement of changes in equity) and Standalone statement of cash 

flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the Standalone state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, 

the Loss and standalone total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the 

year ended on that date. 

Without qualifying our report, we draw your attention to point (b) and (c) of Para (iii) of 

Annexure “A” regarding Loans given by company wherein we have reported non-compliance by 

the company with the provisions of CARO 2016.
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Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 

under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 

together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 

financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Financial 

Statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the standalone financial position, standalone financial 

performance, (changes in equity) and standalone cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

Ind AS & other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Director 

of the company’s are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 

to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 

reporting process. 



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 

company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. 



Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 

continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the standalone 

financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance 

of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the standalone 

financial statements. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 

materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 

results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards.

OTHER MATTER

Due to Covid-19 pandemic, the lockdown and other restrictions imposed by the Government and 

local administration, the review process was carried out based on the remote access and evidence 

shared digitally.

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this other matter.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 

standalone financial statement. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, and the 

standalone Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 

of account maintain for the purpose of the standalone financial statement. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind As specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 

2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 

31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, In our opinion, the 

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31st 

March, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 

in its financial statements – Refer Note 33 (a) (b) & (c) to the financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts 



iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the 

Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Sudhir Sunil & Co.
Chartered Accountants

        FRN: 08345N

Mahima Kapoor
Partner
Membership No.: 514276

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26.05.2021
UDIN: 21514276AAAADE2583



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors' Report

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of Radhika Heights Limited (“the 
Company”) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended on 31st March 2021. We 
report that:

(i) In Respect of Fixed Assets

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals; No 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable property 
are held in the name of the Company.

(ii) In Respect of Inventory

Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
management; No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(iii) Loans given by Company

The Company has granted loans to 2 parties covered in the register maintained under section 

189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). 

a) The company had granted loan to two of its Subsidiary Companies and one of its associate 

Company at the rate of interest of 8% p.a. 

In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had 

been granted to the bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of 

the Act were not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and 

the repayments or receipts are not regular.



c) The under mentioned aggregate amounts of principal and interest are overdue for more 

than ninety days.

Also, the Company has taken reasonable steps for the recovery of the under mentioned 

overdue amounts:-

Nirmala Organic Farms and Resorts Private Limited           Rs. 9,26,42,000/-

Radicura Infra Limited Rs. 33,92,96,500/- 

Sunanda Infra Limited Rs. 19,53,90,000/-

Cabana Construction Private Limited Rs. 29,34,97,000/-

Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited Rs. 30,45,29,000/-

Cabana Structure Limited Rs. 15,40,000/-

d) The above loan shall become repayable on demand unless the tenure of the same 

extended on mutually accepted terms.

(iv) Loans, investments, guarantees, and security under section 185 and 186 of the Companies 

Act, 2013

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of 

loans, investments, guarantees and security, the Company has complied with the provisions of 

section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, provisions of section 185 are not applicable 

to the Company.

(v) Compliance under section 73 to 76 of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder 

while accepting Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposit from public during the year. In our opinion and 

according to the information and explanation given to us the provisions of section 73 to 76 or 

any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Acceptance of 

Deposits) Rules 2014 with regard to deposits from the public is not applicable in the current 

year. Thus, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) Maintenance of cost records

The provisions of maintenance of cost records under sub-section (I) of section 148 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.



(vii) Statutory Dues

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in 

depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Income tax, 

Cess, goods and service tax and other material statutory dues applicable to it.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 

in respect of income-tax, goods and service tax or cess and any other statutory dues with the 

appropriate authorities were in arrears, as at 31st March, 2021 for a period of more than six 

months from the date they became payable.

(viii)  Default in Repayment of Loans and Borrowings taken from Bank or Financial Institutions

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records, the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial 

institution, banks, government or debenture holders during the year. 

Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

(ix) Utilisation of IPO and further Public Offer 

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of 

the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) Reporting of Fraud During the Year Nature and Amount 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the 

Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our 

audit. 

(xi) Approval of Managerial Remuneration

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration. 

Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.



(xii) Nidhi Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 

not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) Related party compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act - 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with the 

provisions of section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such 

transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 

accounting standards. However, provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)Private Placement or Preferential Issues

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 

(xv) Non Cash Transactions

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors 

or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvi)Requirement of Registration under 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act 1934. 

For Sudhir Sunil & Co.
Chartered Accountants

        FRN: 08345N

Mahima Kapoor
Partner
Membership No.: 514276

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26.05.2021
UDIN: 21514276AAAADE2583







































































Amount in Rs.

A) Cash flow from operating activities
Net Operating profit before tax and extra ordinary items 466                     (53,366)                   
Adjustments for:-   
Depreciation 11,450                           -                       
Interest income from Banks (67,440)                         (13,247)                
Interest income from others (1,84,932)                      
Finance Cost 1,82,740                        
Unrealized gain on Mutual funds (16,153)                         (74,335)               -                       (13,247)                   
Operating profit before working capital changes (73,869)               (66,613)                   
(Increase) / Decrease in current Loans (2,00,00,000)                 -                       
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Financial Assets -                                -                       
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets (1,76,721)                      (13,247)                
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payable (29,625)                         29,625                  
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current financial liabilites 99,90,625                      2,00,06,100          
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current liabilites 15,580                           (1,02,00,141)       -                       2,00,22,478            
Cash generated from operations (1,02,74,010)       1,99,55,865            
Net direct taxes paid 3,450                  -                          
Net cash from Operating Activities (1,02,77,460)       1,99,55,865            

B) Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Tangible Assets (62,422)                         -                       
Investment made in Mutual Fund (99,99,500)                    -                       
Interest received 67,440                           13,247                  
Interest receive from others 1,84,932                        -                       
Sale of Fixed Assets -                                -                       
Net cash used in investing activities (98,09,550)          13,247                    
Net cash from operating and investing activities (2,00,87,010)       1,99,69,112            

C) Cash flow from financing activities
Procees from currnt loan 2,00,00,000                   40,000                  
Repayment of Loan -                                (1,83,00,000)        
Interest paid (1,82,740)                      -                       
Net cash from financing activities 1,98,17,260        (1,82,60,000)           
Net cash from operating, investing & financial activities (2,69,750)            17,09,112               
Net increase in cash & cash equivalant (2,69,750)            17,09,112               
Opening balance of cash & cash equivalant 17,57,232           48,120                    

Closing balance of cash & cash equivalant 14,87,482           17,57,232               
  

Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement comprise of the following:- 

i)         Cash balance in Hand 685                     1,965                      
ii)        Balance with Banks:
          a)  In Current Accounts 14,86,797           55,267                    
          b)  In Fixed Deposits -                      17,00,000               
          Total 14,87,482           17,57,232               

 

As per our attached report of even date
For AAGN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN : 027379N/ N500115

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 19.05.2021

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

       Director
DIN No.02904225

Cash flow statement for the year ending 31st March, 2021

     Director

For the period ended
31st March, 2020

Cabana Construction Private Limited 
(Formerly known as Panacea Educational Institute Pvt. Ltd.)

 

 
 

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as PANACEA EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE PRIVATE LIMITED)

Mahipati Singh Kamal Lakhani

 

     DIN No. 01712664

For the year ended
31st March, 2021Particulars



(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Note  
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

I.  ASSETS 
 (1)  Non-current assets
       (a) Property, Plant & Equipments 1 50,972                             -                                  
             (i) Capital Work In Progress -                                  -                                  
             (ii) Other Intangible Assets -                                  -                                  
       (b) Other Non-Current Assets -                                  -                                  

50,972                             -                                  
 (2)  Current assets
      (a) Inventories 2 30,62,10,010                   30,62,10,010                   
      (b) Financial Assets
          (i) Investments 3 1,00,15,653                     -                                  
          (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 4 14,87,482                        57,232                             
          (iii) Bank Balances other than i) above 5 -                                  17,00,000                        
          (iv) Loans 6 2,00,00,000                     -                                  
          (v) Other Financial Assets 7 1,32,64,666                     1,32,64,666                     
      (c) Other Current Assets 8 1,89,968                          13,247                             

35,11,67,779                   32,12,45,155                   
    Total Assets 35,12,18,751                   32,12,45,155                   

II.  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

 (1) Equity
      (a) Equity Share Capital 9 1,00,000                          1,00,000                          
      (b) Others Equity 10 (24,51,490)                       (24,35,301)                       

(23,51,490)                       (23,35,301)                       
Liabilities  
 (2) Non Current Liabilities
      (a) Financial Liabilities
      (b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 11 237                                  -                                  
      (c) Other Non Current Liability -                                  -                                  

237                                  -                                  
 (3) Current liabilities  
      (a) Financial Liabilities
          (i) Borrowings 12 31,34,97,000                   29,34,97,000                   
          (ii) Trade Payables 13 -                                  29,625                             
          (iii) Other financial liabilities 14 4,00,41,425                     3,00,50,800                     
      (b) Other Current Liabilities 15 15,580                             -                                  
      (c) Current Tax Liabilities ( Net) 16 16,000                             3,031                               
 35,35,70,005                   32,35,80,456                   
    Total Equity & Liabilities 35,12,18,751                   32,12,45,155                   

(0)                                    (0)                                    
Summary of significant accounting policies  
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date

For AAGN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN : 027379N/ N500115

Kamal Lakhani  

       Director
DIN No.02904225

Place : New Delhi 
Dated : 19.05.2021

 

     DIN No. 01712664
  
  

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as PANACEA EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE PRIVATE LIMITED)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

Mahipati Singh

     Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cabana Construction Private Limited 

(Formerly known as Panacea Educational Institute Pvt. Ltd.)



(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Note  
For the year ended  

31st March, 2021
For the year ended  

31st March, 2020

Continuing Operations
Revenue From Operations -                                     -                                
Other Income 17 2,76,025                            13,247                           

Total Income (I) 2,76,025                            13,247                           

Expenses
Depreciation & Amortization 1 11,450                               -                                
Financial expenses 18 1,84,634                            59                                  
Other expenses 19 79,475                               66,554                           

Total Expenses (II) 2,75,559                            66,613                           

Profit / (loss) before Tax (I) - (II) 466                                    (53,366)                         

Tax expense:
(1) Current Income Tax 16,000                               3,031                             
(2) Income Tax of Previous Years 419                                    -                                
(3) Deferred Tax 237                                    -                                

Profit / (loss) for the year 
from Continuing Operations (III) (16,190)                              (56,397)                         

Discontinuing Operations
Profit / (loss) for the year from discontinued Operations -                                     
Tax  Income /(Expense) of discontinuing operations -                                     
Profit /(loss) for the year from discontinued Operations (after tax) -                                     
Profit / (Loss) for the year (IV) (16,190)                              (56,397)                         
Other Comprehensive Income 
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to proflt or loss -                                     -                                

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss -                                     -                                
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -                                     -                                

    (ii)  lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified  to profit or loss -                                     -                                
(V) Other Comprehensive Income for the year  -                                     -                                
(VI) Total Comprehensive Income for the year (16,190)                              (56,397)                         

Earning per share for continuing operations [face value of Share Re. 1/-
each]

(Previous Year Re. 1/- each)
(i) Basic
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year (0.16)                                  (0.56)                             
(ii) Diluted
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year (0.16)                                  (0.56)                             

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

 

As per our attached report of even date

For AAGN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN : 027379N/ N500115

Kamal Lakhani  

       Director
DIN No.02904225

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 19.05.2021

 

     Director
     DIN No. 01712664

  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as PANACEA EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE PRIVATE LIMITED)

Statement of Profit & Loass for the year ended 31st March, 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Mahipati Singh

  

Cabana Construction Private Limited 
(Formerly known as Panacea Educational Institute Pvt. Ltd.)



A. Equity Share Capital

Note Numbers Amount (Rs.)

At 1st April 2020 9 1,00,000 1,00,000
-                     -                        

At 31st March, 2021 1,00,000 1,00,000

B. Other equity (Amount in Rs.)

Balance as at April 01, 20119                           -                                 -             (23,78,904)             (23,78,904)
Profit for the period                           -                                 -                  (56,397)                  (56,397)
Other Comprehensive Income                           -                                 -                             -   

Total comprehensive Income for the 
year                           -                                 -             (24,35,300)             (24,35,300)
Dividends                           -                                 -                             -   
Transfer to retained earnings                           -                                 -                             -   
Any other change (to be specified)                           -                                 -                             -   

As at 31st March, 2020                           -                                 -             (24,35,300)             (24,35,300)
                          -   

As at 1st April, 2020           (24,35,300)             (24,35,300)
Profilt for the period                (16,190)                  (16,190)
Other Comprehensive Income                           -   
Restated balance at the begining of the 
reporting period                           -   

Total comprehensive Income for the 
year           (24,51,490)             (24,51,490)
Dividends                           -   
Transfer to retained earnings                           -   
Any other change (to be specified)                           -   

As at 31st March, 2021           (24,51,490)             (24,51,490)

For AAGN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 027379N/ N500115 (Formerly known as Panacea Educational Institute Pvt. Ltd.)

CA. Gaurav Katiyar Mahipati Singh Kamal Lakhani 
Partner  Director  Director 
Membership No. 507950  DIN No. 01712664 DIN No.02904225

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 19.05.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Cabana Construction Private Limited 

 Reserve and Surplus 

Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each issued, subscribed & fully 
Paid-up 

Changes in Equity Share Capital Shares during the year

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as PANACEA EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE PRIVATE LIMITED)

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021

 Total 
 Capital Reserve 

 Securities 
Premium Reserve 

 Retained 
Earnings 

Particulars



1  Property, Plant and Equipment 
  (Amount In Rs)

Description
 Computer 
Equipment  

Total

Gross carrying value
As at April 1, 2019 -                         -                            

Additions -                         -                            
Disposals -                         -                            
Adjustments -                         -                            
Exchange differences -                         -                            

As at March 31, 2020 -                         -                            
Additions 62,422                   62,422                      

Disposals -                         -                            
Adjustments -                         
Exchange differences -                         

As at March 31, 2021 62,422                   62,422                      

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2019 -                         -                            

Charge for the year -                         -                            
Deduction during the year -                         -                            
Exchange differences -                         -                            

As at March 31, 2020 -                         -                            

Charge for the year 11,450                   11,450                      
Disposals -                         -                            
Exchange differences -                         -                            

As at March 31, 2021 11,450                   11,450                      

Net block as at March 31, 2020 -                         -                            
Net block as at March 31, 2021 50,972                   50,972                      

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as PANACEA EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021



(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

2 Inventories
(Valued at Cost or NRV, whichever is lower)
Stock In Trade 30,62,10,010               30,62,10,010               
(Representing Purchase cost of land)

30,62,10,010               30,62,10,010               

3 Investments (current)
Quoted Mutual Funds
       (At Fair Value through Profit & Loss)
296930.771 Units (Previous Year Nil ) NAV 33.7306  in Kotak Saving Funds - (G) 1,00,15,653                 -                               

1,00,15,653                 -                               

4 Cash and Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank 14,86,797                    55,267                         
b) Cash in Hand 685                              1,965                           

14,87,482                    57,232                         

5 Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank
- FD for l2 months -                               17,00,000                    

-                               17,00,000                    

6 Loans  (current)
Loan to Other parties
Unsecured,  considered good 2,00,00,000                 -                               

2,00,00,000                 -                               

Refer Note 28 for credit risk and market risk of Loans.

7 Other Current Financial Assets
Unsecured, considered good

Advances to Others 1,32,64,666                 1,32,64,666                 
1,32,64,666                 1,32,64,666                 

Refer Note 28 for credit risk and market risk of Loans.

8 Other Current Assets

Interest accured but not due on FDR -                               13,247                         
Interest accured and due on Loans 1,71,062                      -                               
TDS Receivable 18,906                         -                               

1,89,968                      13,247                         

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as PANACEA EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021



9 Share Capital  
As at

March 31, 2021
As at

March 31, 2020

a. Authorised
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 1,00,000                             1,00,000                
(Previous Year 1,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each)

 
b. Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Shares
1,00,000 (Previous Year 1,00,000) Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid-up 1,00,000                             1,00,000                
 
Total Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Share Capital 1,00,000                             1,00,000                

c. Terms /rights attached to equity shares

d. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares

In Nos. Amount in Rs. In Nos. Amount in Rs.

At the beginning of the year 1,00,000                    1,00,000                    1,00,000                             1,00,000                

Add : Issued during the year ending -                             -                             -                                      -                         
Outstanding at the end of the Year 1,00,000                    1,00,000                    1,00,000                             1,00,000                

e. Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

 

In Nos. 
% holding in the 

Class In Nos. 
% holding in the 

Class

Equity shares of Re.1/- each fully paid
 - Radhika Heights Limited  (formerly known as Best on Health 
Limited) (Holding Company)) 99,999                       99.99% 99,999                                99.99%
   (1 share is held by nominees of 
     Radhika Heights Limited)

f. Shares held by holding company and/or their subsidiaries/ associates

Equity shares of Re.1/- each fully paid
 - Radhika Heights Limited  (formerly known as Best on Health 
Limited) (Holding Company))

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as PANACEA EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Re.1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend 
declared, if any is payable in Indian rupees. The dividend if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual 
General Meeting. The board has not proposed any dividend for current year and previous year.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitiled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts including preference shares. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

99,999                                                                     99,999                                                                



Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

10 Other Equity
 

Retained Earnings
Opening balance (24,35,301)                 (23,78,904)                 
Add: Net profit/(loss) for the current year (16,190)                      (56,397)                      
Profit available for appropriation (24,51,490)                 (24,35,301)                 
Less : Appropriations -                             -                             
Closing balance (24,51,490)                 (24,35,301)                 

Total Reserves and Surplus (24,51,490)                 (24,35,301)                 

11 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
On temporary difference between the accounitng base & tax base
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of
Property, plant and equipment                              237                                 -   
Others                                 -                                   -   

                             237                                 -   
12 Current Borrowings 

Loans from Related Parties
Unsecured borrowings from holding Company
- Radhika Heights Limited (formerly known as Best on Health Limited) 29,34,97,000              29,34,97,000              
The above borrowing is reayable on demand
- Loan from Director  - Mrs. Radhika Jain * 2,00,00,000                -                             

31,34,97,000              29,34,97,000              

Notes:
*Loan taken from Director on the  interest rate at 11.5% per annuam.

Refer Note 28 for liquidity risk & Market Risk of Current Borrowings.

13 Trade Payables 
Trade Payables (dues to micro and other small enterprises) -                             -                             
Trade Payables (dues to other than micro and other small enterprises) -                             29,625                        

-                             29,625                        

Refer Note 22 for information about liquidity risk & market Risk of Trade Payables.

14 Other Current Financial liabilities 
  Expense Payable 41,425                        50,800                        
  Security  Deposit  from others 4,00,00,000                3,00,00,000                

4,00,41,425                3,00,50,800                

Refer Note 28 for liquidity risk & Market Risk of Other Current Financial Liability.

15 Other Current Liability
Statutory Dues 15,580                        -                             

15,580                        -                             

16 Current Tax Liabilities 
Provision of Income Tax 16,000                        3,031                          

16,000                        3,031                          

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as PANACEA EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021



Amount In Rs

Particulars
 For the Year 

ended
 31st March, 2021 

 For the year 
ended

 30st March, 2020 

17 Other income 
Interest Received from Bank                   67,440                       13,247 
Interest received from Others                1,84,932                              -   
Unrealized Gain  on Mutual fund                   16,153                              -   
Excess provisons written back                     7,500                              -   

               2,76,025                       13,247 

18 Financial expenses 
Interest on Unsecured Loan 1,82,740               -                           
Bank Charges 1,894                                                 59 

               1,84,634                              59 

19 Other expenses 
Accounting Charges -                       2,500                       

 Legal & Professional Charges 20,296                  18,381                     
Auditor's Remuneration:-
 - Statutory Audit Fees 29,500                  29,500                     
 - Fee for other services 8,850                    -                           
Fees & Taxes 8,085                    3,429                       
Lease Rent 12,744                  12,744                     

79,475                  66,554                     

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as PANACEA EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021



(Amt In Rs)

NOTE  20 INCOME TAX
 As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 

The income tax expense consists of the following :
Current tax expense for the current period 16,000                      3,031                         
Current tax expense pertaining to previous years 419                           -                             
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit -                           -                             
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 237                           -                             
Total income tax 16,656                      3,031                         

Profit before income taxes                            466                       (53,366)
Enacted Tax Rate 22.88% 22.88%
Computed Tax Expense                            107                       (12,210)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax
Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed                       15,894                         15,241 
Tax effect of expenses that are not dedcutible for tax purpose                               -                                   - 
Tax effect due to non taxable income                               -                                   - 
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit                               -                                   - 
Previously unrecognised tax losses used to reduce current tax expense                               -                                   - 
Other Temporary Differences                            656                                 - 
Total income tax expense 16,656                      3,031                         

NOTE  21 Earnings Per Share
 As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 

Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders                      (16,190)                       (56,397)
Weighted average number of equity shares                    1,00,000                      1,00,000 
Nominal value per equity share                                1                                  1 
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of 
dilution 

                   1,00,000                      1,00,000 

Earnings per equity share                          (0.16)                           (0.56)
Basic                          (0.16)                           (0.56)
Diluted

NOTE  22 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
 As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 

(A) Contingent liabilities
I Income Tax Nil Nil
II Other Legal Cases Nil Nil

-                           -                             

(B) Capital and other commitments

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

Property, plant and equipment Nil Nil

NOTE  23 COLLABORATION AGREEMENT

NOTE  24 LEASES 

In case of assets taken on lease

Operating Leases:

The total of payments under operating lease is as under:
 As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
12,744                      12,744                       

Particulars

Lease payments for the year recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, net of advances and not provided in the books are as follows:

During the financial year, pursuant to the Change of Registered Office of the Company from the NCT of Delhi to the State of Punjab, Company has 
taken another premises admeasuring 60 sq.ft. at Ground Floor, PDS Block, Ambala-Chandigarh Highway, Lalru Punjab � 140501, under the 
operating lease agreement for its Corporate office from its Holding Company. These are generally cancelable leases and renewable by mutual 
consent on mutually agreed terms.

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as PANACEA EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Reconciliation of tax liability on book profit vis-à-vis actual tax liability 

Cabana Construction Private Limited (�CCPL�) (Formerly known as Panacea Educational Institute Private Limited) along with holding company
named as Radhika Heights Limited (�RHL�) (formerly known as Best On Health Limited) and its three fellow subsidiaries has entered into a
Collaboration agreement with Bestech India Pvt. Ltd. (Developer) on December 10, 2019 for applicable licensable area for joint development of
plots under Deen Dayal Jan Awas Yojna,2016 (DDJAY).

The Developer has applied for the license under DDJAY policy in February, 2020 under the rules & regulations of Town and Country Planning,
Haryana.



NOTE  25 MSME

NOTE  26 Related Party Disclosure

a)

i) Ultimate Holding Company

ii) Holding Company

Radhika Heights Limited (Formerly known as Best On Health Limited) (RHL)

iii)

Radicura Infra Limited
Cabana Structures Limited 
Sundara Infra Limited
Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited

 iv) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Ashwani Jain, Director
Mr. Kamal Lakhani, Director
Mr. Mahipati Singh, Director 
Mr. Sumit Jain, Director
Mrs. Radhika Jain, Director 

v) Entities in Which KMP/relative is having Significant Influence (KMPSI) 

White Pigeon Estate Private Limited
Panacea Life Sciences Limited
Lakshmi & Manager Holdings Limited

b) Description of transactions with the related parties in the normal course of business:

 As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 

2020 

 As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

A. Transaction made during the period
Rent paid 12,744                12,744             - - 
Loan received - 40,000             2,00,00,000              - 
 Loan repayment - 1,83,00,000     - - 
Interest Payment - - 1,82,740 

B. Period end balance
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 

2020 

 As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

Outstanding loans 29,34,97,000      29,34,97,000   2,00,00,000              - 
Rent Outstanding - 12,744             - - 

Names of Related Parties and Nature of Related Party Relationship:

Other Subsidiaries of Radhika Height Limited ( Fellow Subsidiaries)

Holding Company KMP

Based on the information available with the company, there are no dues as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 payable to enterprises covered
under " Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No Interest is paid/payable by the company in terms of Section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

As required by Indian Accounting Standard -24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

Particulars

Nirmala Organic Frams & Resorts Private Limited

Ravinder Heights Limited (Holding Company of RHL) (w.e.f. 10th September'2020)

- Loans taken from holding company are interest free.
- Loans taken from Directors on interest at the rate of 11.50% Per annum.

Notes



NOTE  27 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:
Level 1:  Quoted (Unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(Amount In Rs)

As at 
31-March-21

As at 
31-Mar-20

Carrying Amount

1,00,15,653          - 

Fair Value
Level 1 1,00,15,653          - 
Level 2 - - 
Level 3 - - 
Total - - 

14,87,482 57,232 
17,00,000 17,00,000 

2,00,00,000          - 
1,32,64,666          1,32,64,666          
3,64,52,148          1,50,21,898          

31,34,97,000        29,34,97,000        
- 29,625 

3,00,62,250          3,00,50,800          

34,35,59,250        32,35,77,425        

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as PANACEA EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale.The following methods and assumptions were used to 
estimate the fair values:

Fair Value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other current receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities and other 
financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either 
directly or indirectly

Level 3:  Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable 
market data.

Particulars 

Financial Instruments at fair value through Profit or Loss
Investment

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
(ii) Bank Balances other than i) above

(iii) Other financial liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

(iii) Loans
(iv) Other financial assets
Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables



NOTE 28  Financial Risk Management

A. MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

Foreign currency risk

Price Risk

B. CREDIT RISK

Trade Receivables

Other Financial Assets

Provision for Expected Credit losses
Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no credit risk to the Company.

C. LIQUIDITY RISK

Contractual Maturities of financial liabilities

As at 
30-June-20

Less than 1 year/ On 
Demand

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

Current
(i) Borrowings 31,34,97,000 -                                         -   -   
(ii) Trade payables -                                         -   -                                         -   
(iii) Other financial liabilities 4,00,41,425 -                                         -   -   
Total 35,35,38,425 - - - 

As at 
31-Mar-20

Less than 1 year/ On 
Demand

 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

Current
(i) Borrowings 29,34,97,000 -                                         -   -   
(ii) Trade payables 29,625 -                                         -   -   
(iii) Other financial liabilities 3,00,50,800 -                                         -   -   
Total 32,35,77,425 - - - 

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as PANACEA EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

The Company�s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company�s financial risk 
management policy is set by the Managing Board. The financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company�s policies 
on risk management. Key financial risks and mitigation plans are reviewed by the board of directors of the Company.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value of future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of financial instrument. The
value of  a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, equity prices and other market changes that may effect market
sensitivity instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, loans and
borrowings.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. In
order to balance the Company�s position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to manage the interest rate risk, management
performs a comprehensive interest rate risk management. The Company has no interest bearing borrowings hence it is not exposed to significant interest
rate risk as at the respective reporting dates. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash
flows will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates.

The Company has operations in India only hence Company�s exposure to foreign currency risk is nil. 

Price risk arises from exposure to equity securities prices from investments held by the Company. The Company does not have any investments in 
equity shares.

Credit risk is the risk that customer or counter-party will not meet its obligation under the contract, leading to financial loss. Credit risk arises from trade
receivables and other financial assets.

There are no trade receivables in the Company as at reporting date.

There is no credit risk exposure with respect to other financial assets as they are either supported by legal agreement or are with Nationalized banks.
- Loans to Others are supported with legal agreements, hence there is no credit risk involved.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when they are due.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes
into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

The tables below provide details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at reporting date based on contractual 
undiscounted payments.



NOTE 29  Capital Risk Management

NOTE 30  

NOTE 31 Events after the Reporting period

There are no events observed after the reported period which have an impact on the company operations.

NOTE 32

NOTE 33 Notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these Standalone Financial .

For AAGN & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Cabana Construction Private Limited 

FRN : 027379N/ N500115 (Formerly known as Panacea Educational Institute Pvt. Ltd.)

CA. Gaurav Katiyar Mahipati Singh Kamal Lakhani
Partner      Director        Director

Membership No. 507950  DIN No. 01712664 DIN No.02904225

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 19.05.2021

The Company has assessed the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of Property, Plant &
Equipment, Receivables, Investments and other assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic
conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial results has used internal and external sources of
Information. The management does not see any risks in the company�s ability to continue as a going concern. The Company has used the principles of
prudence in applying judgements, estimates and assumptions and based on the current estimates, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount
of all aforesaid assets. The eventual outcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of
this financial information. Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties in 
future periods, if any.

The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to shareholders.  
The capital structure of the Company is based on management�s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and 
day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic  conditions 
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company�s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity 
so as to maintain creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. There in no change in the Company 
capital structure since previous year.

Revenue from Contracts with Customer
Ind AS 115 Revenue with Contracts with Customers, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after April 1,2018, replaces existing revenue
recognition requirements. Under the modified retrospective approach there were no adjustments required to the retained earnings as at April 1 , 2018.
Application of Ind AS 115 did not have any impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the financial results.



  .  

Sudhir Sunil & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

To the Members of CABANA STRUCTURE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS BEST ON HEALTH 
FOODS LIMITED) 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion  

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Cabana Structure Limited 

Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 

e Financial 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 

quired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the profit 
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date. 

 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the 
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone Financial Statements. 
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statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in 
equity) and cash flows of the Company with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the company are responsible for  maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

process. 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 

 

 

 



 company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conc
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the standalone 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the standalone financial 
statements.  

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 

 



 
 
 

OTHER MATTER 
Due to Covid-19 pandemic and the lockdown and other restrictions imposed by the Government 
and local administration, the review process was carried out based on the remote access and 
evidence shared digitally. 
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this other matter. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 
 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind As 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.  
 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act.  
 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, In our opinion, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 
31st March, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

g. 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.  
 



h. With res
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
 

i. The Company does not having any pending litigations on its financial position in 
its financial statements. 
 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts. 
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 
 

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in  a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 
 
For Sudhir Sunil & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

        FRN: 08345N 
 
 
Mahima Kapoor 
Partner 
Membership No.: 514276 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 20.05.2021 
UDIN: 21514276AAAACX4846 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 

Annexure-A to the Independent Auditors' Report 
 
The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of Cabana Structures Limited (Formerly 
known as Best on Health Foods Limited) 
for the year ended on31st March 2021. We report that: 
 

(i) In Respect of Fixed Assets 

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records, the Company does not have any Fixed Assets during the year. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clauses (i)(a), (i)(b) and (i)(c) of the paragraph 3 of the Order 
are not applicable. 
 

(ii) In Respect of Inventory 

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records, the Company has not maintained any inventory during the year. 
Accordingly, no physical verification of inventory has to be conducted at reasonable 
intervals by the management. 

 
(iii) Loans given by Company 

The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other 
parties covered in the register maintained under Sec 189 of the Act. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clauses (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the paragraph 3 of the 
Order are not applicable. 
 

(iv) Loans, investments, guarantees, and security under section 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 

The Company has neither granted any loan, nor made any investments or given any 
securities as per Sec 185 and 186 of the Act. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (iv) of the paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(v) Compliance under section 73 to 76 of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed 
thereunder while accepting Deposits 

The Company has not accepted any deposit from public during the year. In our opinion and 
according to the information and explanation given to us the provisions of section 73 to 76 
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules 2014 with regard to deposits from the public is not applicable in the current 
year. Thus, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
 

 
 



(vi) Maintenance of cost records 

The provisions of maintenance of cost records under sub-section (I) of section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable. 

 
(vii) Statutory Dues 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in 
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Income tax, 
cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. 
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of income-tax, goods and service tax or cess and any other statutory 
dues with the appropriate authorities were in arrears, as at 31st March, 2021 for a period 
of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 
(viii)  Default in Repayment of Loans and Borrowings taken from Bank or Financial 

Institutions 

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records, the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any 
financial institution, banks, government or debenture holders during the year.  
Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(ix) Utilisation of IPO and further Public Offer  

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(x) Reporting of Fraud During the Year Nature and Amount  

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on 
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of 
our audit.  
 

(xi) Approval of Managerial Remuneration 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial 
remuneration. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(xii) Nidhi Company 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

 



(xiii)  Related party compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act - 2013 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
section 188 of the Company Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian 
accounting standards (Ind As). However, provisions of Section 177 are not applicable to the 
company. 

 
(xiv) Private Placement or Preferential Issues 

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.  

 
(xv)      Non Cash Transactions 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable.  

 
(xvi) Requirement of Registration under 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act 1934.  

 
 

 
For Sudhir Sunil & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

        FRN: 08345N 
 
 
Mahima Kapoor 
Partner 
Membership No.: 514276 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 20.05.2021 
UDIN: 21514276AAAACX4846 
 



Amount in Rs.

Particulars Note 
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

I. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(i) Property, Plant & Equipments - - 
(ii) Other Non-Current Assets - - 

- - 
(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 1 9,106 21,899 
(ii) Bank Balances other than i) above 2 15,00,000 15,00,000 

(c) Other Current Assets 3 14,589 11,689 
15,23,695 15,33,588 

    Total Assets 15,23,695 15,33,588 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 4 5,00,000 5,00,000 
(b) Others Equity 5 (5,82,355) (5,89,717) 

(82,355) (89,717) 
Liabilities
(2) Non Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities - - 
(a) Other Non Current Liabilities - - 

- - 
(3) Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 6 15,40,000 15,40,000 
(ii) Trade payables 7 - 29,625 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 8 41,250 48,000 

(b) Other current liabilities 9 2,250 3,000 
(c) Provisions - - 
(d) Current Tax Liabilities ( Net) 10 22,550 2,680 

16,06,050 16,23,305 
    Total Equity & Liabilities 15,23,695 15,33,588 

(0) (0) 
Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date

        For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.

Chartered Accountants
FRN. 8345N

(MAHIMA KAPOOR) MAHIPATI SINGH
Partner Director

         Membership No.514276   DIN No. 01712664

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 20.05.2021 

DIN 00014236

CABANA STRUCTURES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as BEST ON HEALTH FOODS LIMITED)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Cabana Structures Limited (Formerly known as Best 

on Health Foods Limited)

SUMIT JAIN
     Director



Amount in Rs.

Particulars Note 
For the year ended  

31st March, 2021
For the year ended  

31st March, 2020

Continuing Operations
Revenue From Operations - - 
Other Income 11 97,349 11,689 

Total Income (I) 97,349 11,689 

Expenses
Other expenses 12 67,077 66,554 

Total Expenses (II) 67,077 66,554 

Profit / (loss) before Tax (I) - (II) 30,272 (54,865) 
Tax expense:
(1) Current Income Tax 22,550 2,680 
(2) Income Tax of Previous Years 360 - 
(3) Deferred Tax - - 
Profit / (loss) for the year
from Continuing Operations (III) 7,362 (57,545) 

Discontinuing Operations
Profit / (loss) for the year from discontinued Operations
Tax  Income /(Expense) of discontinuing operations
Profit /(loss) for the year from discontinued Operations (after tax)
Profit / (Loss) for the year  (IV) 7,362 (57,545) 
Other Comprehensive Income 
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to proflt or loss - - 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss - - 
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - - 

(ii) lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified  to profit or loss - - 
(V) Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - 
(VI)Total Comprehensive Income for the year 7,362 (57,545) 

Earning per share for continuing operations [face value of Share Re. 1/-
each]

(Previous Year Re. 1/- each)
(i) Basic
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 0.01 (0.12) 
(ii) Diluted
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 0.01 (0.12) 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date

      For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.

        Chartered Accountants
FRN. 8345N

(MAHIMA KAPOOR) MAHIPATI SINGH
Partner Director

         Membership No.514276   DIN No. 01712664

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 20.05.2021 

Cabana Structures Limited (Formerly known as 
Best on Health Foods Limited)

CABANA STRUCTURES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as BEST ON HEALTH FOODS LIMITED)

Statement of Profit & Loss for the period 31st March, 2021

SUMIT JAIN
     Director

DIN 00014236



A. Equity Share Capital

Note Numbers Amount

At 1st April 2020 4 5,00,000 5,00,000
Changes in Equity Share Capital Shares during the year -                              -                                  
At 31st March, 2021 5,00,000 5,00,000

 

B. Other Equity Amount in Rs.

Balance as at April 01, 2019                            -                              -                        (5,32,172)                          (5,32,172)

Profit/ (loss)  for the period                            -                              -                           (57,545)                             (57,545)
Other Comprehensive Income                            -                              -                                    -                                        -   

Total comprehensive Income for the year                            -                              -                        (5,89,717)                          (5,89,717)

Dividends                            -                              -                                    -                                        -   

Transfer to retained earnings                            -                              -                                    -                                        -   

Any other change (to be specified)                         -                           -                                -                                        -   

As at 31st March, 2020                            -                              -                        (5,89,717)                          (5,89,717)
                                     -   

As at 1st April, 2020                            -                              -                        (5,89,717)                          (5,89,717)

Profit/ (loss)  for the period -                                                    7,362                                7,362 

Other Comprehensive Income                            -                              -                                    -                                        -   
Restated balance at the begining of the 
reporting period                            -                              -                                    -                                        -   

Total comprehensive Income for the year                            -                              -                              7,362                                7,362 

Dividends                            -                              -                                    -                                        -   

Transfer to retained earnings                            -                              -                                    -                                        -   

Any other change (to be specified)                         -                           -                                -                                        -   

As at 31st March, 2021                            -                              -                        (5,82,355)                          (5,82,355)

      For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.  
        Chartered Accountants
                   FRN. 8345N

            (MAHIMA KAPOOR) SUMIT JAIN MAHIPATI SINGH
                     Partner      Director Director
         Membership No.514276 DIN 00014236   DIN No. 01712664

 
PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 20.05.2021 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Cabana 
Structures Limited (Formerly known as Best on Health Foods 

Limited)

Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each issued, 
subscribed & fully Paid-up 

CABANA STRUCTURES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as BEST ON HEALTH FOODS LIMITED)

Statement of Changes In Equity as on 31st March, 2021

 Total 
 Capital Reserve 

 Securities 
Premium Reserve 

 Retained Earnings 
Particulars

 Reserve and Surplus 



Amount in Rs.

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank 8,396                                     21,189                                   
b) Cash in Hand 710                                        710                                        

9,106                                     21,899                                   

2 Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank
- FD for l2 months 15,00,000                              15,00,000                              

15,00,000                              15,00,000                              

Refer Note 20 for liquidity risk & Marketing Risk on Cash and Cash Equivalents  & Bank balances with Bank

3 Other Current Assets

Interest accured but not due on FDR 7,869                                     11,689                                   
TDS Receivable 6,720                                     -                                         

14,589                                   11,689                                   

CABANA STRUCTURES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as BEST ON HEALTH FOODS LIMITED)

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021



Amount In Rs

4 Share Capital  
As at

March 31, 2021
As at

March 31, 2020

a. Authorised
5,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 5,00,000                            5,00,000                
(Previous Year 5,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each)

 
b. Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Shares
500,000 (Previous Year 500,000) Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid-up 5,00,000                            5,00,000                
 
Total Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Share Capital 5,00,000                            5,00,000                

c. Terms /rights attached to equity shares

d. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares

In Nos. Amount in Rs. In Nos. Amount in Rs.
At the beginning of the year 5,00,000                    5,00,000                    5,00,000                            5,00,000                
Add : Issued during the year ending -                            -                            -                                     -                        
Outstanding at the end of the Year 5,00,000                    5,00,000                    5,00,000                            5,00,000                

e. Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
 

In Nos. 
% holding in the 

Class In Nos. 
% holding in the 

Class

Equity shares of Re.1/- each fully paid
 - Radhika Heights Limited  (formerly known as Best on Health 
Limited) (Holding Company)) 4,99,994                    99.99% 4,99,994                            99.99%
 (6 shares are held by nominees of Radhika Heights Limited) 

f. Shares held by holding company and/or their subsidiaries/ associates
 Equity and Preference Shares held by holding company are as below:

 - Radhika Heights Limited  (formerly known as Best on Health 
Limited) (Holding Company))

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

4,99,994                                                           4,99,994                                                                

CABANA STRUCTURES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as BEST ON HEALTH FOODS LIMITED)

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Re.1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend 
declared, if any is payable in Indian rupees. The dividend if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing 
annual General Meeting. The board has not proposed any dividend for current year and previous year.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitiled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts including preference shares. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.



Amount In Rs

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

5 Other Equity

Retained Earnings
Opening balance (5,89,717)               (5,32,172)               
Add: Net profit/(loss) for the current year 7,362                      (57,545)                  
Profit available for appropriation (5,82,355)               (5,89,717)               
Less : Appropriations -                         -                         
Closing balance (5,82,355)               (5,89,717)               

Total Reserves and Surplus (5,82,355)               (5,89,717)               

6 Current Borrowings
Loans from Related Parties
Unsecured borrowings from holding Company
- Radhika Heights Limited (formerly known as Best on Health Limited) 15,40,000               15,40,000               
The above borrowing is repayable on demand

15,40,000               15,40,000               

7 Trade Payables 
Trade Payables (dues to micro and other small enterprises) -                         -                         
Trade Payables (dues to other than micro and other small enterprises) -                         29,625                    

-                         29,625                    

8 Other Current Financial liabilities 
  Expense Payable 41,250                    48,000                    

41,250                    48,000                    

Refer Note 20 for liquidity risk & Marketing Risk of Other Current Financial Liabilities

9 Other Current Liabilities 
Statutory dues 2,250                      3,000                      
Total other liabilities 2,250                      3,000                      

10 Current Tax Liabilities 
Provision of Income Tax 22,550                    2,680                      

22,550                    2,680                      

CABANA STRUCTURES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as BEST ON HEALTH FOODS LIMITED)

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021



Amount In Rs

Particulars
 For the year ended
 31st March, 2021 

 For the year ended
 31s March, 2020 

11 Other income 
Interest Received from Bank                                 89,595                               11,689 
Excess provisions written back                                   7,754                                       -   

                                97,349                               11,689 

12 Other expenses 
Accounting Charges -                                                                     2,500 
Professional Charges 11,210                                                             10,357 
Auditor's Remuneration:-
 - Statutory Audit Fees 29,500                                                             29,500 
 - Tax Return Filing Fee 6,400                                                                 5,900 
 - Fee for Certification -                                                                           -   
Fees & Taxes 5,099                                                                 3,429 
Lease Rent 14,868                                                             14,868 
Bank Charges -                                                                           -   

67,077                               66,554                             

CABANA STRUCTURES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as BEST ON HEALTH FOODS LIMITED)

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021



Amount In Rs

NOTE  13 INCOME TAX
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 

The income tax expense consists of the following :
Current tax expense for the current year 22,550 2,680 
Current tax expense pertaining to previous years 360 - 
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit - - 
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) - - 
Total income tax 22,910 2,680 

Profit before income taxes 30,272 (54,865)
Enacted Tax Rate 25.17% 25.75%
Computed Tax Expense 7,619 (12,553)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax
Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed 14,931 15,234 
Tax effect of expenses that are not dedcutible for tax purpose -                             - 
Tax effect due to non taxable income -                             - 
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit -                             - 
Previously unrecognised tax losses used to reduce current tax expense -                             - 
Other Temporary Differences 360 - 
Total income tax expense 22,910 2,680 

NOTE  14 Earnings Per Share
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 

Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders 30,272 (54,865)
Weighted average number of equity shares 5,00,000 5,00,000 
Nominal value per euity share 1 1 
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of 
dilution 

5,00,000 5,00,000 

Earnings per equity share 0.06 (0.11)
Basic 0.06 (0.11)
Diluted

NOTE  15 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 

(A) Contingent liabilities
I Income Tax Nil Nil
II Other Legal Cases Nil Nil

- - 

(B) Capital and other commitments

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

Property, plant and equipment Nil Nil

NOTE  16 LEASES 

In case of assets taken on lease

Operating Leases:

The total of payments under operating lease is as under:
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 
14,868 14,868 

CABANA STRUCTURES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as BEST ON HEALTH FOODS LIMITED)

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Reconciliation of tax liability on book profit vis-à-vis actual tax liability 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, net of advances and not provided in the books are as
follows:

During the financial year, pursuant to the Change of Registered Office of the Company from the NCT of Delhi to the State of 
Punjab, Company has taken another premises admeasuring 70 sq.ft. at Ground Floor, PDS Block, Ambala-Chandigarh Highway, 
Lalru Punjab � 140501, under the operating lease agreement for its Corporate office from its Holding Company. These are 
generally cancelable leases and renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms.

Particulars

Lease payments for the year recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss



NOTE  17 MSME

NOTE  18 Related Party Disclosure

a)

i) Ultimate Holding Company

  ii) Holding Company
Radhika Heights Limited (Formerly known as Best On Health Limited) (RHL)

iii)

Radicura Infra Limited
Cabana Construction Private Limited 
Sundara Infra Limited
Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited

 iv) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Sumit Jain, Director 
Mrs. Radhika Jain, Director
Mr. Mahipat Singh, Director 
Mr. Kamal Lakhani, Director

 v) Entities in Which KMP/relative is having Significant Influence (KMPSI) 
Lakshmi & Manager Holdings Limited (�LMH�) 
Trinidhi Finanace Pvt. Ltd.
White Pigeon Estate Private Limited
Panacea Life Sciences Limited 
OKI Estates Pvt. Ltd.

b) Description of transactions with the related parties in the normal course of business:

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

A. Transaction made during the year 
Rent Received -                       -                       
Rent paid 14,868                 14,868                 
Loan received -                       15,40,000            
 Loan repayment -                       -                       

B. Year end balance
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 
Outstanding loans * 15,40,000            15,40,000            
Rent outstanding -                       14,868                 

Particulars

Holding Company- Radhika 
Heights Limited

*Loans taken from holding company are interest free.

Nirmala Organic Frams & Resorts Private Limited

Based on the information available with the company, there are no dues as at March 31, 2020 and 31st March, 2019 payable to
enterprises covered under " Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No Interest is paid/payable by the
company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

As required by Indian Accounting Standard -24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

Names of Related Parties and Nature of Related Party Relationship:

Other Subsidiaries of Radhika Height Limited ( Fellow Subsidiaries)

Ravinder Heights Limited (Holding Company of RHL) (w.e.f. 10th September'2020)



NOTE 19  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:
Level 1:  Quoted (Unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Amount In Rs

As at 
31-Mar-21

As at 
31-Mar-20

Carrying Amount

- - 

Fair Value
Level 1 - - 
Level 2 - - 
Level 3 - - 
Total - - 

9,106 21,899 
(ii) Other Bank Balances 15,00,000 15,00,000 

15,09,106 15,21,899 

15,40,000 15,40,000 
- 29,625 

41,250 48,000 
15,81,250 16,17,625 

Level 3:  Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable 
market data.

CABANA STRUCTURES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as BEST ON HEALTH FOODS LIMITED)

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale.The following methods and assumptions were used to 
estimate the fair values:

Fair Value of cash and current deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities and other 
financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either 
directly or indirectly

Total Financial Liabilities

Particulars

Financial Instruments at fair value through Profit or Loss
Financial Assets

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables
(iii) Other financial liabilities



NOTE 20  Financial Risk Management

A. MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

Foreign currency risk

Price Risk

B. CREDIT RISK

Trade Receivables

Other Financial Assets

Provision for Expected Credit losses
Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no credit risk to the Company.

C. LIQUIDITY RISK

Contractual Maturities of financial liabilities

Amount In Rs

As at 
31-Mar-21

Less than 1 year/ 
On Demand

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

Current
(i) Borrowings 15,40,000 -                                      -   -   
(ii) Trade payables -                                          -   -                                          -   
(iii) Other financial liabilities 41,250 -                                      -   -   
Total 15,81,250 - - - 

As at 
31-Mar-20

 Less than 1 year/ 
On Demand 

 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

Current
(i) Borrowings 15,40,000 -                                      -   -   
(ii) Trade payables 29,625 -                                      -   -   
(iii) Other financial liabilities 48,000 -                                      -   -   
Total 16,17,625 - - - 

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The
Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

The Company has operations in India only hence Company�s exposure to foreign currency risk is nil.     

CABANA STRUCTURES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as BEST ON HEALTH FOODS LIMITED)

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

The Company�s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company�s financial 
risk management policy is set by the Managing Board. The financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the 
Company�s policies on risk management. Key financial risks and mitigation plans are reviewed by the board of directors of the Company.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value of future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of financial
instrument. The value of  a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, equity prices and other market
changes that may effect market sensitivity instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments
including investments and deposits, loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. In order to balance the Company�s position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to manage the interest 
rate risk, management performs a comprehensive interest rate risk management. The Company has no interest bearing borrowings hence it 
is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since 
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. 

Price risk arises from exposure to equity securities prices from investments held by the Company. The Company does not have any 
investments in equity shares.

Credit risk is the risk that customer or counter-party will not meet its obligation under the contract, leading to financial loss. Credit risk
arises from trade receivables and other financial assets.

There are no trade receivables in the Company as at reporting date.

There are no other Financial Assets in the Company as at reporting date.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it
will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due.

The tables below provide details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at reporting date based on 
contractual undiscounted payments.



NOTE 21  Capital Risk Management

NOTE 22  

NOTE 23 Events after the Reporting period
There are no events observed after the reported period which have an impact on the company operations.

NOTE 24

NOTE 25 Notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these Standalone Financial .

For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

FRN. 8345N

     (MAHIMA KAPOOR) SUMIT JAIN MAHIPATI SINGH
Partner      Director Director

         Membership No.514276 DIN 00014236   DIN No. 01712664

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 20.05.2021 

Segment Reporting

The Company is a one segment company in the business of real estate development and leasing. All its operations are located in India,
accordingly, the Company views these activities as one business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of
Ind AS 108 on �Segment Reporting�.

The Company has assessed the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of
Property, Plant & Equipment, Receivables, Investments and other assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future
uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial results
has used internal and external sources of Information. The management does not see any risks in the company�s ability to continue as a
going concern. The Company has used the principles of prudence in applying judgements, estimates and assumptions and based on the
current estimates, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of all aforesaid assets. The eventual outcome of impact of the
global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of this financial information. Due to the nature of
the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties in future periods, if any.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Cabana Structures 
Limited (Formerly known as Best on Health Foods Limited)

The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to 
shareholders.  The capital structure of the Company is based on management�s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in 
order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure 
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company�s policy is to maintain a 
stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain creditors and market confidence and to sustain future 
development and growth of its business. There in no change in the Company capital structure since previous year.



Amount in Rs.

Particulars

A) Cash flow from operating activities  
Net Operating profit before tax and extra ordinary items 30,272              (54,865)        
Adjustments for:-
Depreciation -                        -                
Interest Income (89,595)                 (11,689)         
Dividend Income -                        (89,595)             -                (11,689)        
Operating profit before working capital changes (59,323)             (66,554)        
(Increase) / Decrease in Current Loan & Advances -                        -                
(Increase) / Decrease in Non Current Loan & Advances -                        -                
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Bank Balances -                        -                
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories -                        -                
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets (2,900)                   (11,689)         
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables (29,625)                 29,625           
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current liabilites (750)                      3,000             
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current financial liabilites (6,750)                   9,000             
  (40,025)              29,936         
Cash generated from operations (99,348)             (36,618)        
Net direct taxes paid 3,040                -               
Net cash from Operating Activities (1,02,388)          (36,618)        

B) Cash flow from Investing Activities -                        -                
Interest received 89,595                  11,689           
Dividend Income -                        -                
Profit on redemption of Mutual Fund -                        -                
Net cash used in investing activities 89,595              11,689         
Net cash from operating and investing activities (12,793)             (24,929)        

C) Cash flow from financing activities
Fresh loan taken -                        15,40,000      
Issue of Equity Shares -                        -                
Interest paid -                        -                
Net cash from financing activities -                   15,40,000    
Net cash from operating, investing & financial activities (12,793)             15,15,071    
Net increase in cash & cash equivalant (12,793)             15,15,071    
Opening balance of cash & cash equivalant 15,21,899         6,828           

Closing balance of cash & cash equivalant 15,09,106         0                    15,21,899    
  

Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement comprise of the following:- 
i)         Cash balance in Hand 710                   710              
ii)        Balance with Banks:   
          a)  In Current Accounts 8,396                21,189         
          b)  In Fixed Deposits 15,00,000         15,00,000    
          Total 15,09,106         15,21,899    

 

As per our report of even date  

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 20.05.2021 

(Formerly known as BEST ON HEALTH FOODS LIMITED)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ending 31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

                  For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.
                    Chartered Accountants
                          FRN -  8345N

SUMIT JAIN

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Cabana 
Structures Limited (Formerly known as Best On Health 

Foods Limited)

MAHIPATI SINGH

     Director
DIN 00014236

Director
  DIN No. 01712664
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Sudhir Sunil & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

To the Members of Sunanda Infra Limited (FORMERLY KNOWN SUNANDA STEEL COMPANY 
LIMITED) 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 

Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31st 2021, the profit 
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Financial Statements. 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
S-5, Greater Kailash Part - 1, New Delhi- 110 048 India Tel: +91 11 4173 1501 Fax: +91 11 4173 1505 



 
 
 

Emphasis of Matter 

-   
vide Note No. 11 to the financial statements by the management. However, confirmations as at 
Balance Sheet 31.03.2021 were not made available to us due to the prevailing lockdown situation 
amidst second wave of Covid Pandemic. Therefore, due to non-availability of confirmation of 
balances we are not in a position to ascertain the correctness of the outstanding balance in 
relation to the above-mentioned trade payables. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 

 

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes 
in equity) and cash flows of the Company with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the company are responsible for  
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

process 

ities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

eport that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

 

 



 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 

standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date o
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

 

 

 



We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

OTHER MATTER 
 
Due to Covid-19 pandemic, the lockdown and other restrictions imposed by the Government and 
local administration, the review process was carried out based on the remote access and evidence 
shared digitally.  

 
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this other matter. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
standalone financial statement. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, and the 
standalone Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind As specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, In our opinion, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31st 
March, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

 
 



g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 
 

h. 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations on its financial position 
in its financial statements. 

 
ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or 

accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts. 

 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 
2. As required by the 

Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in  a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 
For Sudhir Sunil & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

        FRN: 08345N 
 
 
Mahima Kapoor 
Partner 
Membership No.: 514276 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 19.05.2021 
UDIN: 21514276AAAACR2652 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Annexure to the Independent Auditors' Report 

 
The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED (Formerly 
known as SUNANDA STEEL COMPANY LIMITED)
statements for the year ended on31st March 2021. We report that: 

 
(i) In Respect of Fixed Assets 

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records, the Company does not have any Fixed Assets during the year.  
Accordingly, the provisions of clauses (i)(a), (i)(b) and (i)(c) of the paragraph 3 of the Order are 
not applicable. 

 
(ii) In Respect of Inventory 

Inventory includes only Land. Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at 
reasonable intervals by the management and no material discrepancies were noticed at the 
time of verification. 

 
(iii) Loans given by Company 

The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other   
parties covered in the register maintained under Sec 189 of the Act. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clauses (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the paragraph 3 of the Order      
are not applicable. 
 

(iv) Loans, investments, guarantees, and security under section 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 

The Company has neither granted any loan, nor made any investments or given any securities 
as per Sec 185 and 186 of the Act. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (iv) of the paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(v) Rules followed while accepting Deposits  

The Company has not accepted any deposit from public during the year. In our opinion and 
according to the information and explanation given to us the provisions of section 73 to 76 or 
any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules 2014 with regard to deposits from the public is not applicable in the current 
year. Thus, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(vi) Maintenance of cost records 

The provisions of maintenance of cost records under sub-section (I) of section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 
 

 



(vii) Statutory Dues 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in 
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Income tax, 
Goods and Service tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. 
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of income-tax, goods and service tax or cess and any other statutory dues with the 
appropriate authorities were in arrears, as at 31st March, 2021 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable. 

 
(viii) Default in Repayment of Loans and Borrowings taken from Bank or Financial 

Institutions 

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records, the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial 
institution, banks, government or debenture holders during the year.  
Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(ix) Utilisation of IPO and further Public Offer  

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(x) Reporting of Fraud During the Year Nature and Amount  

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the 
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our 
audit.  
 

(xi) Approval of Managerial Remuneration 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial 
remuneration. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(xii) Nidhi Company 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



(xiii) Related Party Transactions 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. However, section 177 is not applicable to the company. 

 
 
(xiv) Private Placement or Preferential Issues 

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.  

 
(xv) Non Cash Transactions 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable.  

 
(xvi) Register under RBI Act, 1934 

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act 1934.  
 
 

 
For Sudhir Sunil & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

        FRN: 08345N 
 
 
Mahima Kapoor 
Partner 
Membership No.: 514276 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 19.05.2021 
UDIN: 21514276AAAACR2652  



Amount in Rs.

Particulars Note 
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

I. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(i) Property, Plant & Equipments - - 
(ii) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 1 96,51,987 96,73,547

96,51,987 96,73,547
(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories 2 21,27,10,208 21,27,10,208 
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 3 1,00,19,491 - 
(ii) Trade receivables 4 - - 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 5 57,973 71,864
(iv) Bank Balances other than i) above 6 17,00,000 17,00,000

(c) Other Current Assets 7 16,534 13,247
22,45,04,206 21,44,95,319

    Total Assets 23,41,56,193 22,41,68,866

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 8 5,00,000 5,00,000
(b) Others Equity 9 (21,95,055) (22,13,746) 

(16,95,055) (17,13,746) 
Liabilities
(2) Non Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities - - 
(b) Other Non Current Liabilities - - 

- - 
(3) Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 10 19,53,90,000 19,53,90,000 
(ii) Trade payables 11 4,10,008 4,41,312
(iii) Other financial liabilities 12 4,00,41,550 3,00,48,300 

(b) Other current liabilities 13 2,250 3,000 
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 7,440 - 

23,58,51,248 22,58,82,612
    Total Equity & Liabilities 23,41,56,193 22,41,68,866

(0) (0) 
Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date

        For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.

 Chartered Accountants
FRN. 8345N

            (MAHIMA KAPOOR) MAHIPATI SINGH
Partner Director

         Membership No.514276   DIN No. 01712664

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED:  19.05.2021

DIN 00014236

SUNANDA  INFRA LIMITED 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SUNANDA STEEL COMPANY LIMITED)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Sunanda 
Infra Limited (Formerly known as Sunanda Steel 

Company Limited)

SUMIT JAIN
     Director



Amount in Rs.

Particulars Note 
For the year ended  
31st  March, 2021

For the year ended  
31st March, 2020

Continuing Operations
Revenue From Operations -                              -                                
Other Income 15 1,39,751                      13,247                           

Total Income (I) 1,39,751                      13,247                           

Expenses
Other expenses 16 92,060                         5,02,251                        

Total Expenses (II) 92,060                         5,02,251                        

Profit / (loss) before Tax (I) - (II) 47,691                         (4,89,004)                      

Tax expense:
(1) Current Income Tax 29,000                         3,444                             
(2) Deferred Tax -                              -                                

Profit / (loss) for the year 
from Continuing Operations (III) 18,691                         (4,92,448)                      

Discontinuing Operations
Profit / (loss) for the year from discontinued Operations
Tax  Income /(Expense) of discontinuing operations
Profit /(loss) for the year from discontinued Operations (after tax)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (IV) 18,691                         (4,92,448)                      
Other Comprehensive Income 
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to proflt or loss -                              

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss -                              
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -                              

    (ii)  lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified  to profit or loss -                              
(V) Other Comprehensive Income for the year  -                              
(VI) Total Comprehensive Income for the year 18,691                         (4,92,448)                      

Earning per share for continuing operations [face value of Share Re. 1/-
each]

(Previous Year Re. 1/- each)
(i) Basic
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 0.04                             (0.98)                             
(ii) Diluted
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 0.04                             (0.98)                             

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date
 

      For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.

        Chartered Accountants
                   FRN. 8345N

            (MAHIMA KAPOOR) SUMIT JAIN MAHIPATI SINGH
                     Partner      Director Director
         Membership No.514276 DIN 00014236   DIN No. 01712664
  
PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED:  19.05.2021

SUNANDA  INFRA LIMITED 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SUNANDA STEEL COMPANY LIMITED)

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March'2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Sunanda Infra Limited (Formerly known as 

Sunanda Steel Company Limited)



A. Equity Share Capital

Equity Shares of Re. 1 each issued, subscribed & fully Paid-up Note Numbers Amount (Rs.)

At 1st April 2020 8 5,00,000 5,00,000
Changes in Equity Share Capital Shares during the year -                                   -                              
At 31st March, 2021 5,00,000 5,00,000

For the year ended 31st March, 2021

Balance as at April 01, 2019                                   -                          -                           (17,21,298)                    (17,21,298)
Profit for the period                                   -                          -                             (4,92,448)                      (4,92,448)
Other Comprehensive Income                                   -                          -                                         -                                    -   

Total comprehensive Income for the year                                   -                          -                           (22,13,746)                    (22,13,746)
Dividends                                   -                          -                                         -                                    -   
Transfer to retained earnings                                   -                          -                                         -                                    -   
Any other change (to be specified)                                -                      -                                     -                                    -   
As at 31st March, 2020                                   -                          -                           (22,13,746)                    (22,13,746)

                                 -   
As at 1st April, 2020                                   -                          -                           (22,13,746)                    (22,13,746)
Profit for the period -                                                  18,691                          18,691 
Other Comprehensive Income                                   -                          -                                         -                                    -   

Total comprehensive Income for the year                                   -                          -                                 18,691                          18,691 
Dividends                                   -                          -                                         -                                    -   
Transfer to retained earnings                                   -                          -                                         -                                    -   
Any other change (to be specified)                                -                      -                                     -                                    -   

As at 31st March, 2021                                   -                          -                           (21,95,055)                    (21,95,055)

        For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.
            Chartered Accountants
                   FRN. 8345N

            (MAHIMA KAPOOR)  SUMIT JAIN  MAHIPATI SINGH
                     Partner       Director  Director
         Membership No.514276  DIN 00014236    DIN No. 01712664
   
PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED:  19.05.2021  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Sunanda Infra Limited (Formerly 
known as Sunanda Steel Company Limited)

 Total 
 Capital Reserve 

 Securities 
Premium 
Reserve 

 Retained Earnings 

SUNANDA  INFRA LIMITED 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SUNANDA STEEL COMPANY LIMITED)
Statement of changes in the Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021

B. Other Equity

Particulars

 Reserve and Surplus 



Amount in Rs.

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

1 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Add: MAT Credit Entitlement 96,73,547 96,76,991 
Less: Current year tax adjusted with MAT credit (21,560) (3,444) 

96,51,987 96,73,547 

2 Inventories
(Valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower)
Stock In Trade 21,27,10,208 21,27,10,208 

21,27,10,208 21,27,10,208 

3 Investments (current)
Quoted Mutual Funds
       (At Fair Value through Profit & Loss)
2907044.557 Units (Previous Year Nil ) NAV 33.7306  in Kotak Saving Funds - (G) 1,00,19,491 - 

1,00,19,491 - 

4 Trade Recevables

Secured
Unsecured, considered good - - 

- - 

5 Cash and Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank 55,522 70,413 
b) Cash in Hand 2,451 1,451 

57,973 71,864 

6 Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank
- FD for l2 months 17,00,000 17,00,000 

17,00,000 17,00,000 

7 Other Current Assets

Interest accured but not due on FDR 8,918 13,247 
TDS Receivable 7,616 - 

16,534 13,247 

SUNANDA  INFRA LIMITED 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SUNANDA STEEL COMPANY LIMITED)

Notes to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'2021



Amount in Rs.

8 Share Capital  
             As at

               March 31, 2021
As at

March 31, 2020

a. Authorised
1,000,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 10,00,000 10,00,000              
(Previous Year 1,000,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each)

b. Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Shares
500,000 (Previous Year 500,000) Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid-up 5,00,000 5,00,000

Total Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Share Capital 5,00,000 5,00,000

c. Terms /rights attached to equity shares

d. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares

In Nos. Amount in Rs. In Nos. Amount in Rs.
At the beginning of the year 5,00,000 5,00,000 5,00,000 5,00,000
Add : Issued during the year ending - - - - 
Outstanding at the end of the Year 5,00,000 5,00,000 5,00,000 5,00,000

e. Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

In Nos. 
% holding in the 

Class In Nos. 
% holding in the 

Class

Equity shares of Re.1/- each fully paid
- Radhika Heights Limited  (formerly known as Best on Health 
Limited) (Holding Company)) 4,99,994 99.99% 4,99,994 99.99%
 (6 shares are held by nominees of Radhika Heights Limited) 

f. Shares held by holding company and/or their subsidiaries/ associat

Equity Shares held by holding company are as below:
- Radhika Heights Limited  (formerly known as Best on Health 
Limited) (Holding Company))

As at 31st March, 2021

The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Re.1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The 
dividend declared, if any is payable in Indian rupees. The dividend if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in 
the ensuing annual General Meeting. The board has not proposed any dividend for current year and previous year.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitiled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts including preference shares. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

4,99,994 4,99,994 

SUNANDA  INFRA LIMITED 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SUNANDA STEEL COMPANY LIMITED)

Notes to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'2021

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020



Amount in Rs.

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

9 Other Equity
 

Retained Earnings
Opening balance (22,13,746)                 (17,21,298)                 
Add: Net profit/(loss) for the current year 18,691                       (4,92,448)                   
Profit available for appropriation (21,95,055)                 (22,13,746)                 
Less : Appropriations -                             -                             
Closing balance (21,95,055)                 (22,13,746)                 

Total Reserves and Surplus (21,95,055)                 (22,13,746)                 

10 Current Borrowings
Loans from Related Parties
Unsecured borrowings from holding Company -                             -                             
- Radhika Heights Limited (formerly known as Best on Health Limited) 19,53,90,000             19,53,90,000             
The above borrowing is repayable on demand

19,53,90,000             19,53,90,000             

Refer Note 23 for information about liquidity risk & Marketing Risk of current borrowings.

11 Trade Payables 
Trade Payables (dues to micro and other small enterprises) -                             -                             
Trade Payables (dues to other than micro and other small enterprises) 4,10,008                    4,41,312                    

4,10,008                    4,41,312                    

Refer Note 22 for information about liquidity risk & Marketing Risk of Trade Payables.

12 Other Current Financial liabilities 
  Expense Payable 41,550                       48,300                       
  Security Deposit from others 4,00,00,000               3,00,00,000               

4,00,41,550               3,00,48,300               

Refer Note 23 for information about liquidity risk of Other Current Financial liabilities.

13 Other Current Liabilities 
Statutory dues 2,250                         3,000                         
Total other liabilities 2,250                         3,000                         

14 Current Tax Liabilities 
Provision of Income Tax under as per MAT 7,440                         -                             

7,440                         -                             

SUNANDA  INFRA LIMITED 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SUNANDA STEEL COMPANY LIMITED)

Notes to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'2021



Amount in Rs.

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2021 
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2020 

15 Other income 
Interest income from Bank 1,01,541                     13,247                        
Income from Rent 10,431                        -                              
Unrealized Gain  on Mutual fund                          19,991 -                              
Excess provisons written back                            7,788 -                              

                      1,39,751                          13,247 

16 Other expenses 
Accounting Charges -                              2,500                          
Professional Charges 15,334                        12,510                        
Auditor's Remuneration:-   
 - Statutory Audit Fee 29,500                        29,500                        
 - Tax return filing fee 6,400                          5,900                          
Fees & Taxes 6,423                          4,129                          
Property Tax 18,854                        4,34,000                     
Bank Charges 1,953                          118                             
Lease Rent 13,596                        13,594                        

92,060                        5,02,251                     

SUNANDA  INFRA LIMITED 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SUNANDA STEEL COMPANY LIMITED)

Notes to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'2021



(Amt In Rs)

NOTE  16 INCOME TAX
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 

The income tax expense consists of the following :
Current tax expense for the current period 29,000                 3,444                                 
Current tax expense pertaining to previous years -                      -                                     
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit (21,560)                (3,444)                                
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) -                      -                                     
Total income tax 7,440                   -                                     

Profit before income taxes                  47,691                             (4,89,004)
Enacted Tax Rate 26.00% 26.00%
Computed Tax Expense                  12,400                             (1,27,141)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax
Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed                  16,600                              1,30,585 
Tax effect of expenses that are not dedcutible for tax purpose                          -                                          - 
Tax effect due to non taxable income                          -                                          - 
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit                 (21,560)                                 (3,444)
Previously unrecognised tax losses used to reduce current tax expense                          -                                          - 
Other Temporary Differences                          -                                          - 
Total income tax expense 7,440                   -                                     

NOTE  17 Earnings Per Share
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 

Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders                  18,691                             (4,92,448)
Weighted average number of equity shares                5,00,000                              5,00,000 
Nominal value per equity share                           1                                          1 
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of 
dilution 

               5,00,000                              5,00,000 

Earnings per equity share                      0.04                                   (0.98)
Basic                      0.04                                   (0.98)
Diluted

                                       -   

NOTE  18 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 

(A) Contingent liabilities -                                     
I Income Tax Nil Nil
II Other Legal Cases Nil Nil

-                      -                                     

(B) Capital and other commitments

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

Property, plant and equipment Nil Nil

NOTE  19 COLLABORATION AGREEMENT

Sunanda Infra Limited (�SIL�) (Formerly known as Sunanda Steel Company Limited) along with its three fellow Wholly owned 
subsidiaries (�WOS�) and their holding company named as Radhika Heights Limited (�RHL�)(formerly known as Best On Health 
Limited) has entered into a Collaboration agreement with Bestech India Pvt. Ltd. (Developer) on December 10, 2019 for applicable 
licensable area for joint development of plots under Deen Dayal Jan Awas Yojna,2016 (DDJAY).

The Developer has applied for the license under DDJAY policy in February, 2020 under the rules & regulations of Town and Country 
Planning, Haryana.

SUNANDA  INFRA LIMITED 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SUNANDA STEEL COMPANY LIMITED)

Notes to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'2021

Reconciliation of tax liability on book profit vis-à-vis actual tax liability 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, net of advances and not provided in the books are as 
follows:



NOTE  20 LEASES 

In case of assets taken on lease
Operating Leases:

The total of payments under operating lease is as under:
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 
13,596                 13,594                               

NOTE  21 MSME

NOTE  22 Related Party Disclosure

a)

i) Ultimate Holding Company

 ii) Holding Company
Radhika Heights Limited (Formerly known as Best On Health Limited) (RHL)

iii)

Radicura Infra Limited
Cabana Construction Private Limited 
Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited 
Cabana Structures Limited 

 iv) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Ashwani Jain, Director 
Mr. Sumit Jain, Director 
Mr. Mahipat Singh, Director 
Mrs. Radhika Jain , Director

 v)
Lakshmi & Manager Holdings Limited (�LMH�) 
White Pigeon Estate Private Limited
Panacea Life Sciences Limited 

b) Description of transactions with the related parties in the normal course of business:

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

A. Transaction made during the period 
Rent Received -                      -                                     
Rent paid 13,596                 13,594                               
Loan received -                      4,70,000                             
Loan repayment -                      1,83,00,000                        

B. Period end balance
 As at

March 31, 2019 
 As at

March 31, 2018 
Outstanding loans * 19,53,90,000       19,53,90,000                      
Rent Outstanding -                      13,594                               

Particulars

Holding Company- Radhika Heights 
Limited

*Loans taken from holding company are interest free.

Names of Related Parties and Nature of Related Party Relationship:

Other Subsidiaries of Radhika Height Limited ( Fellow Subsidiaries)

Nirmala Organic Frams & Resorts Private Limited

Entities in Which KMP/relative is having Significant Influence (KMPSI)

Ravinder Heights Limited (Holding Company of RHL) (w.e.f. 10th September'2020)

During the financial year, pursuant to the Change of Registered Office of the Company from the NCT of Delhi to the State of Punjab, 
Company has taken another premises admeasuring 65 sq.ft. at Ground Floor, PDS Block, Ambala-Chandigarh Highway, Lalru Punjab � 
140501, under the operating lease agreement for its Corporate office from its Holding Company. These are generally cancelable leases 
and renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms.

Particulars

Lease payments for the year recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Based on the information available with the company, there are no dues as at March 31, 2021 and 31st March, 2020 payable to enterprises
covered under " Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No Interest is paid/payable by the company in terms of
Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

As required by Indian Accounting Standard -24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:



NOTE  23 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:
Level 1:  Quoted (Unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Amount In Rs

As at 
31-Mar-21

As at 
31-Mar-20

Carrying Amount

1,00,19,491           -                         

Fair Value
Level 1 1,00,19,491           -                         
Level 2 -                         -                         

Level 3 -                         -                         
Total -                         -                         

57,973                   71,864                   
(ii) Bank Balances other than i) above 17,00,000              17,00,000              

17,57,973              17,85,111              

19,53,90,000        19,53,90,000        
4,10,008                4,41,312                

4,00,41,550           3,00,48,300           
23,58,41,558        22,58,79,612        

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
(i)  Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables
(iii) Other financial liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

Particulars  

Financial Instruments at fair value through Profit or Loss
Investments

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Total Financial Assets

SUNANDA  INFRA LIMITED 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SUNANDA STEEL COMPANY LIMITED)

Notes to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'2021

The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale.The following methods and assumptions were used to 
estimate the fair values:

Fair Value of cash and current deposits, trade and other current receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities and other 
financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either 
directly or indirectly

Level 3:  Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable 
market data.



NOTE 23  Financial Risk Management

A. MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

Foreign currency risk

Price Risk

B. CREDIT RISK

Trade Receivables

Other Financial Assets

Provision for Expected Credit losses
Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no credit risk to the Company.

C. LIQUIDITY RISK

Contractual Maturities of financial liabilities

As at 
31-Mar-21

Less than 1 year/ On 
Demand

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

Current
(i) Borrowings 19,53,90,000 -                                            -   -   
(ii) Trade payables 4,10,008 -                                            -   -   
(iii) Other financial liabilities 4,00,41,550 -                                            -   -   
Total 23,58,41,558 - - - 

As at 
31-Mar-20

 Less than 1 year/ On 
Demand 

 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

Current
(i) Borrowings 19,53,90,000 -                                            -       -   
(ii) Trade payables 4,41,312 -                                            -       -   
(iii) Other financial liabilities 3,00,48,300 -                                            -       -   
Total 22,58,79,612 - - - 

NOTE 24  Capital Risk Management

The tables below provide details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at reporting date based on contractual undiscounted 
payments.

The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to shareholders.  The 
capital structure of the Company is based on management�s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-
day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic  conditions and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company�s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to 
maintain creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. There in no change in the Company capital 
structure since previous year.

Price risk arises from exposure to equity securities prices from investments held by the Company. The Company does not have any investments in equity 
shares.

Credit risk is the risk that customer or counter-party will not meet its obligation under the contract, leading to financial loss. Credit risk arises from trade 
receivables and other financial assets.

There are no trade receivables in the Company as at reporting date.

There are no other Financial Assets in the Company as at reporting date.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when they are due.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into
account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

SUNANDA  INFRA LIMITED 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SUNANDA STEEL COMPANY LIMITED)

Notes to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'2021

The Company�s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company�s financial risk management 
policy is set by the Managing Board. The financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company�s policies on risk 
management. Key financial risks and mitigation plans are reviewed by the board of directors of the Company.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value of future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of financial instrument. The value 
of  a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, equity prices and other market changes that may effect market sensitivity 
instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. In order 
to balance the Company�s position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to manage the interest rate risk, management performs a 
comprehensive interest rate risk management. The Company has no interest bearing borrowings hence it is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at 
the respective reporting dates. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate 
because of change in market interest rates. 

The Company has operations in India only hence Company�s exposure to foreign currency risk is nil.     



NOTE 25  

NOTE 26  

NOTE 27 Events after the Reporting period
There are no events observed after the reported period which have an impact on the company operations.

NOTE 28

NOTE 29 Notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these Standalone Financial .

        For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.
            Chartered Accountants

FRN. 8345N

     (MAHIMA KAPOOR) SUMIT JAIN MAHIPATI SINGH
Partner      Director Director

   Membership No.514276 DIN 00014236   DIN No. 01712664

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED:  19.05.2021

Segment Reporting

The Company is a one segment company in the business of real estate development and leasing. All its operations are located in India , accordingly, the
Company views these activities as one business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on �Segment Reporting�.

The Company has assessed the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of Property, Plant &
Equipment, Receivables, Investments and other assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic
conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial results has used internal and external sources of Information.
The management does not see any risks in the company�s ability to continue as a going concern. The Company has used the principles of prudence in
applying judgements, estimates and assumptions and based on the current estimates, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of all aforesaid
assets. The eventual outcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of this financial
information. Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties in future periods, if
any.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Sunanda Infra Limited 
(Formerly known as Sunanda Steel Company Limited)

Revenue from Contracts with Customer

Ind AS 115 Revenue with Contracts with Customers, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018, replaces existing revenue
recognition requirements. Under the modified retrospective approach there were no adjustments required to the retained earnings as at April 1 , 2018.
Application of Ind AS 115 did not have any impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the financial results.



Amount in Rs.

Particulars

A) Cash flow from operating activities

Net Operating profit before tax and extra ordinary items 47,691                (4,89,004)                 

Adjustments for:-

Depreciation -                   -                  

Unrealized gain on Mutual funds (19,991)            

Interest Income (1,39,751)         (1,59,742)            (13,247)           (13,247)                    

Operating profit before working capital changes (1,12,051)            (5,02,251)                 

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories -                   -                  

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets (3,287)              (13,247)           

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables (31,304)            31,304            

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liabilities 99,93,250        2,00,08,900    

Increase / (Decrease) in Other current liabilites (750)                 99,57,909           3,000              2,00,29,957             

Cash generated from operations 98,45,858           1,95,27,706             

Net direct taxes paid -                      -                           

Net cash from Operating Activities 98,45,858           19527706.2
B) Cash flow from Investing Activities

Investment made in Mutual fund (99,99,500)       -                  

Dividend Income -                   -                  

Interest Income 1,39,751          13,247            

Net cash used in investing activities  (98,59,749)           13,247                     

Net cash from operating and investing activities (13,891)               1,95,40,953             

C) Cash flow from financing activities

Fresh loan taken -                   4,70,000         

Repayment of loan -                   (1,83,00,000)   

Dividend Paid -                   -                  

Interest paid -                   -                  

Net cash from financing activities -                      (1,78,30,000)            

Net cash from operating, investing & financial activities (13,891)               17,10,953                

Net increase in cash & cash equivalant (13,891)               17,10,953                

Opening balance of cash & cash equivalant 17,71,864           60,911                     

Closing balance of cash & cash equivalant 17,57,973           17,71,864                

  

 
Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement comprise of the following:- 

i)         Cash balance in Hand 2,451                  1,451                       

ii)        Balance with Banks:

          a)  In Current Accounts 55,522                70,413                     

          b)  In Fixed Deposits 17,00,000           17,00,000                

          Total 17,57,973           17,71,864                

 

As per our report of even date  

PLACE: NEW DELHI

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

     Director
DIN 00014236

SUNANDA  INFRA LIMITED 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SUNANDA STEEL COMPANY LIMITED)

                FRN -  8345N

      For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.

     Director

 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

DATED:  19.05.2021

MAHIPATI SINGHSUMIT JAIN

 

     DIN 01712664

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Sunanda Infra 
Limited (Formerly known as Sunanda Steel Company Limited) 

         Chartered Accountants

 



















NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESoRTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021 

Amount in Rs. 

Particulars Note 
As at As at 

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

I. ASSETS 
(1) Non-current assets 

) Property, Plant & Equipments 1 7,10,51,600 7,81,66,196 
(i) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 2 3,59,414 3,58,255

7,85,25,610 7,14,09,955 
(2) Current assets 

(a) Financial Assets 

) Cash and cash equivalents 
3,70,191 71,207 

(ii) Other Financial Assets 4 1,93,66,285 2,64,96,991 
(b) Other Current Assets 

5 10,438 

1,97,46,914 
9,82,72,524 

2,65,68,198 
9,79,78,153 

Total Assets

1I. EQUTY AND LIABILITIES 

(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital

(b) Others Equity 
1,00,000 1,00,000

53,78,404 61,98,048 
54,78,404 62,98,048 

Liabilities 
(2) Non Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(a) Other Non Current Liabilities 

(3) Current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

Gi) Borrowings 8 9,26,42,000 9,15,42,000 
) Trade payables

(i) Other financial liabilities 

9 ,937 29,625
10 48,590 1,07,786

(b) Other Current Liability 11 49,593 694 

9,27,94,120 9,16,80,105 
Total Equity & Liabilities 

9,82,72,524 9,79,78,153 

|Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
As per our attached report of even date 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nirmala For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO. 
Organic Farms & Resorts Private Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
FRN. 8345N 

komalLemo 
(MAHIMA KAPOOR) ASHWANI JAIN 

Director
DINKO. 00014002

KAMAL LAKHANT 
Partner 

Dircctor 
Membership No.514276 

DIN No.02904225 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 

DATED: 20.05.2021 



NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of the Profit & Loss for the year ended 3Ist March, 2021 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2021 

Amount in Rs. 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2020 
Particulars Note 

Continuing Operations 
Revenue From Operations 
Other Income 

12 69,243 
69,243 

Total Income () 

Expenses
Depreciation & Amortization 

Other expenses
62.8 21,603 

13 8,27,067 3,97 ,842 
Total Expenses (1) 

8,89,946 4,19,445
Profit/(loss) before Tax () - (11) 

(8,20,703)) (4,19,445) 

Tax expense: 
1) Current Income Tax 

(2) Deferred Tax (Credit)/ Charge
Profit/(loss) for the year from Continuing Operations (IIT) (1.059)

(8,19,644) 
(5,522)

(4,13,923) 
Discontinuing Operations 
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued Operations 
Tax Income /(Expense) of discontinuing operations 
IX. Profit/loss) for the year from discontinued Operations (after tax) 
Profit/(Loss) for the year (TV) 

Other Comprehensive Income
A. () Items that will not be reclassified to proflt or loss 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 

loss 
|B. () Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or 

loss 

(8,19,644) (4,13,923) 

V) Other Comprehensive Income for the year 
(VT) Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

(8,19,644) 4,13,923) 
Earning per share for continuing operations [face value of Share Re. 1/- 

each]
(Previous Year Re. 1/- each)
6) Basic

Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 
i) Diluted

Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 

(8.20) 4.14) 

(8.20) (4.14) 
Summary of significant accounting policies 

2.1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
As per our attached report of even date 

For SUDHIR SUNIL &CO. 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nirmala OrganicChartered Accountants Farms & Resorts Private Limited 

FRN. 8345N 

CameyLoma 

AsiiWaAIN 
evtor 
DINo. 0001 4002 

(MAHIMA KAPOOR) 
KAMAL LAKHANIPartner

DirectorMembership No.514276 
DIN No.02904225 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 

DATED: 20.05.2021 



NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of changes in Equity for the Year ended 31st March, 2021 

A. Equity Share Capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each issued, subscribed & fully Paid-up Note Numbers Amount (Rs.) 

1,00,000 1,00,000
At 1st April 2020 

Changes in Equity Share Capital Shares during the year 

At 31st March, 2021 1,00,000 1,00,000

Amount in Rs. B. Other Equity 

Reserve and Surplus

Particulars Securities Premium Retained Total 
Capital Reserve

Reserve Earnings

66,78,176 
4,S0,128) 

66,78,176 Balance as at April 01, 2019 

Profit for the period
Other Comprehensive Income
Total conmprehensive Income for the year 

Dividends 
Transter to retainedeamings
Any otherchange(to be specified) 
As at 31st March, 2020 

(4,80,128) 

61,98,048 61,98,048 

61,98,048 | 61,98,048 

61,98,048 61,98,048 AS at 1st April, 2020 
Profit for the period

Other Comprehensive Income
Restated balance at the begining of the reporting 

period
Total comprehensive Income for the year 

Dividends 
Transfer to retained earmings
Any other change (to be specified) 
As at 31st March, 2021 

(8,19,644) (8,19,644) 

(8,19,644)| (8,19,644) 

53,78,403 53,78,403 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nirmala

For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO. Organic Farms & Resorts Private Limited

Chartered Accountants 
FRN. 8345N

kamelR2me 
ASHANI JAIN 

Dfrector
RINNo. 00014002

(MAHIMA KAPOOR) KAMAL LAKHANI

Partner Director
Membership No.514276 DIN No.02904225 

PLACE: NEW DELHI

DATED: 20.05.2021 



NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESoRTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

1 Property, Plant and Equipment 

(Amountin Rs) 

Description Land-Freehold Agriculture Equipment Tractor Total

Gross carrying value
As at April 1, 2019 7,08,04,965 1,88,400 5,24,858 7,15,18,223 

Additions 

Disposals 
Adjustments 
Exchangedifferences 

As at March 31, 2020 7,08,04,965| 1,88,400 5,24,858 7,15,18,2233 
Additions 71,77,475 71,77.475 
Disposals 
Adjustments 

Exchange differences 
As at March 31, 2021 7,79,82,440 1,88,400 5,24,858 7,86,95,698 

Accumulated depreciation 
As at April 1, 2019 56,766 3,22,968 3,79,734

Charge for the year 

Deduction during the year 

Exchange differences 
As at March 31, 2020 

Charge for the year 

Disposals 
Exchange differences 

As at March 31, 2021 

23,830 63,059 86,889

80,596 3,86,027 4,66,623
19,516 43,363 62,879

1,00,112 4,29,390 5,29,502 

Net block as at Mareh 31, 2020 

Net block as at March 31, 2021 
7,08,04,965 
7,79,82,440 

1,07,804 1,38,831 7,10,51,600 
7,81,66,196 88,288 95,468 

Note 

During this financial year, the land arranger (Mr. Sunil Chowdhary) has submitted invoices of Land development expenditure amounting to 
Rs. 62,35,780/- and also claimed an amount of Rs. 941,695/- towards the payment of additional stama duty for the registration of sale deerds of 
Agriculture land situated at Alwar, Rajasthan. 
The submitted invoices and paid duties pertain to the FY 2011-12 and the stamp duty was paid in the year 2015. These expenses were exclusively 

related to Land development which have been furnished by Mr. Chowdhary to the company in the current year.

As per Indian Accounting Standard(ind AS) 16 on Property, Plant and Equipment, the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises 
"any costs directy attributable to bringing the asset to the lacation and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended 
by management". The standard also mentions that cost incliudes not only its original purchase price, but aso costs of site preparation. In compliance 
with this standard the Company has capitalized this amount by making addition of Rs. 71,77,475/- in the Land mentioned in its Fixed Asset Schedule. 



NIRMALA ORGANICFARMS & RESORTS PRIVATELIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

Particulars As at at 

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

2 Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

Troperty, plant and equipment 
Others 38,864 37,805 
Total Deferred Tax Assets 

38,864 37,805 

MAT credit entitlement 

Less: provision for impairment of MAT credit entitlement 
3,20,550 3,200,54) 

Net Deferred Tax Assets 

3,59,414 3,58,355= 

3 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
a) Balances with Bank 
b) Cash in Hand 3,66 775 

3,41 
3,70,191

67,793 

3,414 
71,207 

4 Other Current Financial Assets

Unsecured, considered good 
Adavances to others 

1,93,66,285 
1,93,66,285 

2,64,96,9911 
Refer Note 21 for infomration about credit risk and market risk of Othr Current Financial Assets

2,64,96,991 = 

5 Other Current Assets

i) Others 

a) Prepaid expenses
10438
10,438 



NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financlal Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

(Amount In Rs) 

6 Share Capital As As at at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
a. Authorised 

1,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 

(Previous Year 1,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each) 
I,00,00M) I,00,000

b. Issued, Subscribed &fully Paid-up Shares

1,00,000 (Trevious Year 1,00,000) Equity Shares of Re.1/- ench fully paid-up 1,00,000 1,00,000

Total Issued, Subscribed &fully Paid-up Share Capital 1,00,000 1,00,000

c. Terms/rights attached to equity shares 

he company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Re.1/- per share. Each holder of eyuity shares is entitled to one vote per sharc. 
he dividend declared, if any is payable in Indian rupes. The dividend if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing annual General Meeting. The board has not proposed any divicdend for current year and previous year.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitiled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution 

of all preferential amounts inchuding preference shares. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholdrs 

d. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year 

As at 31st March, 2020 
Amount in Rs. 

As at 31st March, 2019 
Amount in Rs. In Nos. In Nos. 

At the beginning of the year 

Add: Issued during the year ending 
1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000

Outstanding at the end of the Year 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 .00,PM

e. Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at 31st March, 2019 
%a holding in the 

As at 31st March, 2020 

0 holding in 
In Nos. In Nos. 

the Class Class
Equity shares of Re.1/- each fully paid 
Radhika Heights Limited (formerly known as Best on Health Limited)

(Holding Company) ,999 99 99 ,999 99 99 g9 

(1 shares are held by nominees of Radhika Heights Limited) 

f. Shares held by holding company and/or their subsidiaries/ associates 
Equity and Preference Shares held by holding company are as below:

Radhika Heights Limited (formerly krnown as Best on Health Limited)

(Holding Company)

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 

99,999 99,999 



NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS& RESORTS P'RIV'AUIIMITD 
Notes to inancial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

(Amount In Rs) 

Particulars As a As at 
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

7 Other Equity

Retained Earnings
Opening balance
Add: Net profit/(loss) for the current year 
Profit available for appropriation 
Less: Appropriations 

Closing balance 

61,98,048 66,78,176 
(8,19,644) (4.80,128) 

61,98,048 53,78,404 

53,78,404 61,98,048 
Total Reserves and Surplus 53,78,404 61,98,048 

8 Current Borrowings 

Unsecured, Considered Good 
Loans from Related Parties

Unsecured borrowings from holding Company 
Radhika Heights Limited (formerly known as Best on Health Limited)

The above is repayable on demand
9,26,42,000 9,15,42,000 

9,26,42,000 9,15,42,000 

Refer Note 21 for information about liquidity risk and market risk of Current Borrowings. 

9 Trade Payables

Trade Payables (dues to micro and other small enterprises) 
Trade Payables (dues to other than micro and other small enterprises) 53,937 29,625

53,937 29,62
= 

Refer Note 21 for information about liquidity risk and market risk of Trade Payables. 

10 Other Current Financial liabilities 

Expense Payable 48,590 1,07,786

1,07,786590 

Refer Note 21 for information about liquidity risk and market risk of Other Current Financial Liabilities. 

11 Other Current Liabilities 

Statutory dues 49,593 694 

49,593 694 

12 Other income 

Income from sale of vegetables 
Excess provisons written back 

49,800 

19,443 
69,243 

13 Other expenses
2,92,817 Agriculture Expenses

Land leveling Expenses
Power and fuel 

,09,895
65,031 70,576

2,58,972 2,54,611Security Charges
Accounting Charges
Professional Charges

2,500 
23,334 12,481 

Auditor's Remuneration:- 

29,500 25,9 Statutory Audit Fees 
Tax return filing fees 5,900 5,900 

17,703 3,429 Fees & Taxes 
12,744 12,744 Lease Rent 
11,168 9,641 Insurance expense

Bank Charges
8,27,067 3,97,842



NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATEI IMITED 
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31»t March, 2021 

(Amt In Rs) 

As at As at NOTE 14 INCOME TAX 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

The inconme tax expense consists of the following: 
Current tax expense for the current year 

Curent tax expense pertaining to previvus years
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit

Deferrcd tax expense/(benefit) 
059) 
(1,059)

(4)3)
(4,603)

Total income tax 

Reconciliation of tax liability on book profit vis-à-vis actual tax liability 

(1.84 (8.20,703) 
26.00

Profit before income taxes 
31) Enacted 1ax Rate 

00%% Computed Tax Expense

Adjustments in respect of current income tax 
Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed
Tax effect of expenses that are not dedcutible for tax purpose
Tax effect due to non taxable income

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit

Previously unrecognised tax losses used to reduce current tax expenseOther Temporary Differences 
(1.059)
(1,059)

(4.603)Total income tax expense
4,603)

As at As at NOTE 15 Earnings Per Share

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

(8,19.644) (4.13.923) 
Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders 
Weighted average number of equity shares 
Nominal value per euity share
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution
Earnings per equity share

1.00,000 1,00.000

1 

1.00.000 1.00.000

(8.20) (4 14) Basic 
20 (4.14)Diluted

As at As at NOTE 16 cONTINGENCIES AND cOMMITMENTS 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 
(A) Contingent liabilities 

I Income Tax 
Nil Nil I Other Legal Cases
Nil Nil 

(B) Capital and other commitments 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, net ot advances and not provided in the books are as fallowsParticulars at As at 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

Nil Nil Property, plant and equipment 

NOTE 17 LEASES 

In case of assets taken on lease 

Operating Leases:

During the financial year, pursuant to the Change of Registerecd Office of the Compny fron lhe NCT of Delli tu the State of Punjab. Cimpany ha taken another premises admeasuring 60 sq.ft. at Ground Floor, POS Block, Ambala-Chandigarh I lighway. Lalru Punjab - 140501, under the operating lease agreement for its Corporate office from its Holding Company. These are generally cancelable leases and renewable by mutual consent on 
mutually agreed terms. 

The total of payments under operating lease is as under: 
For the year ended For the year ended Particulars 
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

Lease payments for the year recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 12,744 12.4 



Other Lenses: 

urng the financial year, fr the development ot agriculture business, ( ompanv has Lahrn a_u ultue Land admeasuring 11 acr appran al vllage 

Harsaru, District Curugarm, Harayana, under the operating lense agrerment for its devopment of Agrwulture business frum its holding company
ad the fellow subsidiarics (namely as Radhika l leights Liniteud, Radieura Infra Limiteul & Sunanda Infra Limited), These are generally cancelable 

leases and renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms,

The total of payments under operating leaseis as under: 

Particulars For the year ended Fur the year ended 

31st March, 202131st March, 2020 

78,055 Lease paymentsfor the year recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

NOTE 18 MSME 

Based on the information avaiable with the company, there are no dues as at March 31, 2021 and ilst March, 2020 payable to enterprses covered
under Miro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No Interest is paid/ payable by the conmpany in terms of Section 16 of the Micro
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

NOTE 19 Related Party Disclosure 

As required by Indian Accounting Standard -24, the disclosures of transactions with the relatvd partUs dre given below

a) Names of Related Parties and Nature of Related Party Relationship: 

i) Ultimate Holding Company
Ravinder Heights Limited (Holding Company of RHL) (w.e.f. 10th September 2020)

ii) Holding Company
Radhika Heights Limited (Formerly known as Best On Health Limited) (RHL)

iii Other Subsidiaries of Radhika Height Limited (Fellow Subsidiaries) 

Radicura Infra Limited
Sunanda Infra Limited

Cabana Construction Private Limited

Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited

Cabana Structures Limited

iv) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Ashwani Jain, Director 

Mr. Sumit Jain, Director

Mrs. Radhika Jain, Director
Mr. Kamal Lakhani, Director

v) Entities in Which KMP/relative is having Significant Influence (KMPSl)

Lakshmi & Manager Holdings Limited ("LMH")

Trinidhi Finanace Pvt. Ltd. 

White Pigeon Estate Private Limited

Panacea Life Sciences Limited

OKI Estates Pvt. Ltd. 

b) Description of transactions with the related parties in the normal course of business
Holding Company- Radhika

Heights Limited Fellow subsidiaries 
Particulars 

As at As at s at As at 
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

A. Transaction made during the year 

Rent paid 
|Loan received

Loan repayment 

12,744 
4,00,000

54,773 36,026 
11,00,000 

B. Year end balance As at As at As at As at 
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

Outstanding loans 
Loans taken from holding company are interest frece.

9,1542.0000_ 926,42,(u)| 



NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

NOTE 20 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The fair valuc of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in 
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale The following methods and 

assumptions were uscd to estimate the fair values:

Fair Value of cash and current deposits, trade and other current receivables, trade payables, other current liabilitics 

and other financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these 

instruments. 

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

Level 1: Quoted (Unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are 

observable, either directly or indirectly 

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on 

observable market data.

Amount In Rs 

Particularss As at As at 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 

Carrying Amount
Financial Instruments at fair value through Profit or Loss 

Financial Assets

Fair Value
Level 1 
Level 2 
Level 3 

Total 

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 

) Cash and cash equivalents 

i) Other Financial Assets 
Total Financial Assets

3,70,191 71,207

1,93,66,285 
1,97,36,476 

2,64,96,991 
2,65,68,198 

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 

6) Borrowings 
Gi) Trade payables
ii) Other financial liabilities 
Total Financial Liabilities 

9,26,42,000 9,15,42,000 
53,937 29,625

48,590
9,27,44,527 

1,07,786
9,16,79,411 



NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS P'RIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

NOTE 21 Financial Risk Management 

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how loplan dnd oevle ts bu-uuess strategles Ihe onpany » 

financial risk management policy is set by thhe Managing Board. 1The finaneial risks are idenlilied, measured and managed in 

accordance with the Company's policies on risk management. Key financial risks and mitigation plans are reviewed by the board

of directos of the Company.

A. MARKET RISK 

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value of future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of 

financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, cquity pres and 

other market changes that may effect market sensitivity instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive 

financial instruments including investments and deposits, loans and borrowings. 

Interest Rate Risk 

nterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market interest rates. In order to balance the Company's position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to 

manage the interest rate risk, management performs a comprehensive interest rate risk management. The Company has no interest
beanng borrowings hence it is not exposed to signiticant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates. They are theretore 
not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change in 

market interest rates.

Foreign currency risk 
The Company has operations in India only hence Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is nil. 

Price Risk 

Price risk arises from exposure to equity securities prices from investments held by the Company. The Company does not have 

any investments in equity shares.

B. CREDIT RISK 

Credit risk is the risk that customer or counter-party will not meet its obligation under the contract, leading to financial loss. Credit 

risk arises from trade receivables and other financial assets.

Trade Receivables 

There are no trade receivables in the Company as at reporting date. 

Other Financial Assets 

There is no credit risk exposure with respect to other financial asscts as they are either supported by legal agreement or are with 
Nationalized banks. 
Loans to Others are supported with legal agreements, hence there is no eredit risk involved

Provision for Expected Credit losses

Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no credit risk to the Conmpany. 

C. LIQUIDITY RISK 

Liquidity isk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as 
far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due. 

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity position and cash and cash oquivalents on the basis of expected cash flow 
The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entuty opwrates



Contractual Maturities of financial liabilities 
The tables below provide details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at reporting date basecl on 
contractual undiscounted payments. 

Amount In Rs 

Less than 1 As at 
year/ On 

Demand 
31-Mar-21 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

Current
) Borrowings 
i) Trade payables
(ii) Other financial liabilities 
Total 

9,26,42,000 
,937 

590 
9,27,44,527 

Less than 1 As at 

31-Mar-20 year/ On 1-2 ycars 2- 3 years More than 3 years 
Demand 

Current

6) Borrowings 
Gi) Trade payables
ii) Other financial liabilities 

Total 

9,15,42,000 
29,625 

1,07,786
9,16,79,411 

NOTE 22 Capital Risk Management 
The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern ànd to optimize reurns to shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on management's judgment of the appropriate balance of 

key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and 

manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The 

Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain creditors and 
market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. There in no change in the Company capilalstructure since previous year.

NOTE 23 Revenue from Contracts with Customer

Ind AS 115 Revenue with Contracts with Customers, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after April 1,2018, replacesexisting revenue recognition requirements. Under the modified retrospective approach there were no adjustments required to th retained earnings as at April 1, 2018. Application of Ind AS 115 did not have any impact on recognition and measurement of 
revenue and related items in the financial results.

NOTE 24 Segment Reporting 

The Company is a one segment company in the business of real estate development and leasing. All its operations are located in India, accordingly, the Company views these activities as one business segment, tlhere are no additional disclosures to be providedin terms of Ind AS 108 on "Segment Reporting. 

NOTE 25 Events after the Reporting period 

There are no events observed after the reported period which have an impact on the company operations 

NOTE 26 The Company has assessed the possible effects that may result from the pandeniic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts

of Property, Plant &e Equipment, Receivables, Invest1nents and other asets. In developing the assunmptions relating to the possiblefuture uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of thesefinancial results has used internal and external sources of Infomation. The management does not see any risks in the company's ability to continue as a going concern. The Company has used the principles of prudence in applying judgements, estimates and 

assumptions and based on the current estimates, the Company expects to recover the carrying anount of all aforesaid assets. The 
eventual outcome of inpact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of this financial information. Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Companv will continue 
significant uncertainties in future periods, if any. 

monitor developments to identifv 

NOTE 27 Notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nirmala 
For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO. Organic Farms & Resorts Private Limited

Chartered Accountants 

FRN. 8345N 

camedRna 
(MAHIMA KAPOOR) ASHWANI JAIN KAMAL LAKHANI 

Partner pirector 
DIX No. 00014002

Director
Membership No.514276 

DIN No.02904225 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 

DATED: 20.05.2021 



NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE ILIMITED 

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

Amount in Rs. 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2021 
For the Year Ended 

Particulars 31st March, 2020 

A) Cash flow from operating activities 
Net Operating profit / (Loss) before tax and extra ordinary

items (8,20,703) (4,,731) 
Adjustments for:-

Income from sale of fixed Assets 

Depreciation & Amortisation Expesnes 62,879 86,889 
Other income 62,879 86,889 
Operating profit/ (Loss) before working capital Changes

(Inerease) / Decrease in current loans and advances
(7,57,824) (3,97,842) 

(lncrease) / Decrease in other current financial assets 71,30,706 59,13,821 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other current assets (10,438) 9,041
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade payables 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liabilities 
Increase/ (Decrease) in other current liabilities 

24,312 (59,04,552) 

(59,196) 4,386

48,899 71,34,283 23,296
Cash generated from operations 

Less: Net Direct Taxes paid 
Net Cash from Operating Activities 

B) Net cash used in Investing Activities 

Purchase of assets, including CWIP and capital advances

63,76,459 (3,74,546) 

63,76,459 (3,74.546) 

(71,77,475) 
other receipts

Net cash used in Investing Activities 

C)Cash flow from Financing Activities 
(71,77,475) 

Fresh loan taken 11,00,000 4,00,000
Net cash from financing activities 

Net cash from operating, investing & financial activities 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in cash & cash equivalant 

Opening balance of cash & cash equivalant 

Closing balanceof cash & cash equivalant 
Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the 

Cash Flow Statement Comprise of the following:-

11,00,000 4,00,000
2,98,984 25.4 

2,98,984 25,454 

71,207 45,753 

3,70,191 71,207

i) Cash balance in Hand 3,416 3,414 
Balance with Banks:

a) In Current Accounts 3,66,775 67,793 
b) In Fixed Deposits

Total 
As per our attached report of even date 

3,70,191 71,207 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO. Nirmala Organic Far1ns & Resorts Private Limited

Chartered Accountants 

FRN 8345N 

( kanalenio 
SIANI JAIN 

/ Director
(MAHIMA KAPOOR) KAMAL LAKHANI

Partner Director
Membership No.514276 DINNo. 0001 4002 DIN No.02904225 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 

DATED: 20.05.2021 























Amount in Rs.

Particulars Note
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

I. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipments 1 1,10,144 - 
(b) Financial Assets - - 

(i) Investments 2 1,50,00,000 - 
(ii) Loans 3 2,00,00,000 - 

3,51,10,144 - 
(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories 4 29,56,65,414 29,56,65,414 
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 5 3,14,67,815 - 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6 2,15,524 82,252 
(iii) Bank Balances other than i) above 7 - 17,00,000 
(iv) Loans 8 25,00,000 - 
(v) Other Financial Assets 9 29,72,974 29,72,974 

(c) Other Current Assets 10 1,74,982 13,247 
33,29,96,709 30,04,33,887 

    Total Assets 36,81,06,853 30,04,33,887 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 1,00,000 1,00,000 
(b) Others Equity 12 (47,68,435) (41,62,997) 

(46,68,435) (40,62,997) 
Liabilities
(2) Non Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities - - 
(i) Borrowings 13 2,50,00,000 - 

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 1,901 
(c) Other Non Current Liability - - 

2,50,01,901 - 
(3) Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(ii) Borrowings 15 27,95,29,000 24,70,29,000 
(ii) Trade Payables 16 2,81,05,498 2,74,13,949 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 4,00,41,425 3,00,50,800 

(b) Other Current Liabilities 18 97,464 - 
(c) Current Tax Liabilities ( Net) 19 - 3,135 

34,77,73,387 30,44,96,884 
    Total Equity & Liabilities 36,81,06,853 30,04,33,887 

(0) (0) 
Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date
For AAGN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN : 027379N/ N500115

Mahipati Singh
     Director

DIN 01712664

Place : New Delhi
Dated: 20.05.2021 

Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited  
(Formerly known as Panacea Hospitality Services Pvt. Ltd.)

DIN 00014236

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED 
(formerly known as PANACEA HOSPITALITY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Sumit Jain
     Director



Amount in Rs.

Particulars Note
For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Continuing Operations
Revenue From Operations - - 
Other Income 20 23,77,335 13,701 
Total Income (I) 23,77,335 13,701 

Expenses
Depreciation & Amortization 1 17,149 - 
Financial expenses 21 12,25,026 59 
Other expenses 22 17,38,267 71,982 
Total Expenses (II) 29,80,442 72,041 

Profit / (loss) before Tax (I) - (II) (6,03,107) (58,340) 

Tax expense:
(1) Current Income Tax - 3,135 
(2) Income Tax of Previous Years 430 (9,086) 
(3) Deferred Tax 1,901 - 

Profit / (loss) for the year 
from Continuing Operations (III) (6,05,438) (52,389) 

Discontinuing Operations
Profit / (loss) for the year from discontinued Operations - - 
Tax  Income /(Expense) of discontinuing operations - - 
Profit /(loss) for the year from discontinued Operations 
(after tax) - - 
Profit / (Loss) for the year (IV) (6,05,438) (52,389) 
Other Comprehensive Income 
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to proflt or loss - - 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified  to profit or loss - - 
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - - 

(ii) lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified
to profit or loss - - 
(V) Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - 
(VI) Total Comprehensive Income for the year (6,05,438) (52,389) 

of Share Re. 1/-each]

(Previous Year Re. 1/- each)
(i) Basic
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year (6.05) (0.52) 
(ii) Diluted
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year (6.05) (0.52) 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date
For AAGN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN : 027379N/ N500115

Mahipati Singh
     Director

DIN 01712664

Place : New Delhi
Dated: 20.05.2021 

(Formerly known as Panacea Hospitality Services Pvt. Ltd.)

     Director
DIN 00014236

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED 
(formerly known as PANACEA HOSPITALITY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year ended 31st march, 2021 

Sumit Jain

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited  



A. Equity Share Capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each issued, subscribed & fully Paid- Note Numbers Amount

At 1st April 2020 11 1,00,000 1,00,000
Changes in Equity Share Capital Shares during the year - - 
At 31st March, 2021 1,00,000 1,00,000

B. Other Equity Amount in Rs.

Balance as at April 01, 2019 -                                  -   (41,10,608) (41,10,608)

Profit for the period -                                  -   (52,389) (52,389)

Other Comprehensive Income -                                  -   -                                 -   

Total comprehensive Income for the year -                                  -   (41,62,997) (41,62,997)

Dividends -                                  -   -                                 -   

Transfer to retained earnings -                                  -   -                                 -   

Any other change (to be specified) -                               -   -                                 -   

As at 31st March, 2020 -                                  -   (41,62,997) (41,62,997)
-   

As at 1st April, 2020 -                                  -   (41,62,997) (41,62,997)

Profit for the period - (6,05,438) (6,05,438)

Other Comprehensive Income -                                  -   -                                 -   
Restated balance at the begining of the 
reporting period -                                  -   -                                 -   

Total comprehensive Income for the year -                                  -   (6,05,438) (6,05,438)

Dividends -                                  -   -                                 -   

Transfer to retained earnings -                                  -   -                                 -   

Any other change (to be specified) -                               -   -                                 -   

As at 31st March, 2021 -                                  -   (47,68,435) (47,68,435)

For AAGN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 027379N/ N500115

CA. Gaurav Katiyar Sumit Jain Mahipati Singh
Partner      Director      Director
Membership No. 507950 DIN 00014236 DIN 01712664

Place : New Delhi
Dated: 20.05.2021 

Particulars

 Reserve and Surplus 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited  

(Formerly known as Panacea Hospitality Services Pvt. Ltd.)

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED 
(formerly known as PANACEA HOSPITALITY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021

 Total  Capital 
Reserve 

 Securities 
Premium Reserve 

 Retained Earnings 



1  Property, Plant and Equipment 
 (Amount In Rs)

Description
 Computer 

Equipments 
Total

Gross carrying value
As at April 1, 2019 - - 

Additions - - 
Disposals - - 
Adjustments - - 
Exchange differences - - 

As at March 31, 2020 - - 
Additions 1,27,293 1,27,293 

Disposals - - 
Adjustments - 
Exchange differences - 

As at March 31, 2021 1,27,293 1,27,293 

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2019 - - 

Charge for the year - - 
Deduction during the year - - 
Exchange differences - - 

As at March 31, 2020 - - 

Charge for the year 17,149 17,149 
Disposals - - 
Exchange differences - - 

As at March 31, 2021 17,149 17,149 

Net block as at March 31, 2020 - - 
Net block as at March 31, 2021 1,10,144 1,10,144 

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED 
(formerly known as PANACEA HOSPITALITY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2021



Amount in Rs.

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

2 Investments  (non-current)
Non Trade (valued at lower of cost and fair Market value, unless stated otherwise) 
Unquoted NCD's:

 a )  Kieraya Furnishing Solution Pvt. Ltd. Sr. Round XXVI 16% PA NCD  1,50,00,000 - 

1,50,00,000 - 

Refer Note 31 for information about credit risk and market risk on Investments

3 Loans  (non-current)
Loan to Other parties
Secured,  considered good 2,00,00,000 - 

2,00,00,000 - 

4 Inventories
(Valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower)
Stock In Trade 29,56,65,414 29,56,65,414 
(Representing Purchase cost of land)

29,56,65,414 29,56,65,414 

5 Investments (current)
Quoted Equity  Funds
       (At Fair Value through Profit & Loss)
120625.111 Units  (Previous Year Nil ) of NAV 12.1684  in UTI Nifty Index fund - (G) 14,67,815 - 

Unquoted NCD's:
Kieraya Furnishing Solution Pvt. Ltd. Sr. Round XXXI  16% PA NCD 3,00,00,000 - 
(300 units @ Rs. 100,000/- each)

3,14,67,815 - 

6 Cash and Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank 2,10,657 81,050 
b) Cash in Hand 4,867 1,202 

2,15,524 82,252 

7 Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank
- FD for l2 months - 17,00,000 

- 17,00,000 

8 Loans  (current)
Loan to Other parties
Unsecured,  considered good 25,00,000 - 

25,00,000 - 

9 Other Current Financial Assets
Unsecured, considered good

Advances to Others 29,72,974 29,72,974 
29,72,974 29,72,974 

Refer Note 31 for information about credit risk and market risk of Other Current Financial Assets

10 Other Current Assets

Interest accured but not due on FDR - 13,247 
TDS receivable 1,74,982 - 

1,74,982 13,247 

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED 
(formerly known as PANACEA HOSPITALITY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2021



(Amount In Rs)

11 Share Capital 
As at

March 31, 2021
As at

March 31, 2020

a. Authorised
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 1,00,000 1,00,000 
(Previous Year 1,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each)

b. Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Shares
1,00,000 (Previous Year 1,00,000) Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid-up 1,00,000 1,00,000 

Total Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Share Capital 1,00,000 1,00,000 

c. Terms /rights attached to equity shares

d. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares

In Nos. Amount in Rs. In Nos. Amount in Rs.
At the beginning of the year 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 
Add : Issued during the year ending - - - - 
Outstanding at the end of the Year 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 

e. Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

In Nos. 
% holding in the 

Class In Nos. 
% holding in the 

Class

Equity shares of Re.1/- each fully paid
- Radhika Heights Limited  (formerly known as Best on Health
Limited) (Holding Company)) 99,999 99.99% 99,999 99.99%
(1 shares are held by nominees of Radhika Heights Limited)

f. Shares held by holding company and/or their subsidiaries/
associates

Equity Shares held by holding company are as below:

- Radhika Heights Limited  (formerly known as Best on Health
Limited) (Holding Company))

As at 31st March, 2020

The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Re.1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
dividend declared, if any is payable in Indian rupees. The dividend if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing annual General Meeting. The board has not proposed any dividend for current year and previous year.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitiled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts including preference shares. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED 
(formerly known as PANACEA HOSPITALITY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

99,99999,999

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2021



Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

12 Other Equity

Retained Earnings
Opening balance (41,62,997) (41,10,608) 
Add: Net profit/(loss) for the current year (6,05,438) (52,389) 
Profit available for appropriation (47,68,435) (41,62,997) 
Less : Appropriations - - 
Closing balance (47,68,435) (41,62,997) 

Total Reserves and Surplus (47,68,435) (41,62,997) 

13 Borrowings  (Non Current)
Loans from Related Parties
Unsecured borrowings from holding Company 
- Radhika Heights Limited (formerly known as Best on Health Limited) 2,50,00,000 - 

2,50,00,000 - 

Notes:
Loans from related parties are payable at fixed repayment terms. Interest rate is at 8% per annuam.
Refer Note 31 for information about liquidity risk & market Risk on non Current Borrowings.

14 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
On temporary difference between the accounitng base & tax base
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of
Property, plant and equipment 1,901 -   
Others -                                   -   

1,901 -   
15 Current Borrowings 

Loans from Related Parties
Unsecured borrowings from holding Company 
- Radhika Heights Limited (formerly known as Best on Health Limited)* 27,95,29,000 24,70,29,000 
The above borrowing is repayable on demand.

27,95,29,000 24,70,29,000 

Notes:- 

Refer Note 31 for information about liquidity risk & market Risk on Current Borrowings.

16 Trade Payables 
Trade Payables (dues to micro and other small enterprises) - - 
Trade Payables (dues to other than micro and other small enterprises) 2,81,05,498 2,74,13,949 

2,81,05,498 2,74,13,949 

Refer Note 29 for information about liquidity risk & market Risk of Trade Payables.

17 Other Current Financial liabilities 
 Interest accrued and due on borrowings - - 
 Expense Payable 41,425 50,800 
 Security Deposit from others 4,00,00,000 3,00,00,000 

4,00,41,425 3,00,50,800 

Refer Note 29 for information about liquidity risk & market Risk of Other Current Financial liabilities.

18 Other Current Liability 97,464 - 
Statutory Dues 97,464 - 

19 Current Tax Liabilities - 3,135 
Provision of Income Tax - 3,135 

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED 
(formerly known as PANACEA HOSPITALITY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2021

*Loans Rs. 2.25 Cr. from related parties included in above are payable at fixed repayment terms. Interest rate is at 8%
per annuam.



Amount In Rs

Particulars
 For the year ended
 31st March, 2021 

 For the year ended
 31st March, 2020 

20 Other income 
Interest received from Bank 36,726 13,247 
Interest received from NCD's 18,95,301 454 
Interest received from Others 4,37,808 -   
Excess provisons written back 7,500 -   

23,77,335 13,701 

21 Financial expenses 
Interest on Unsecured Loan 12,23,014 - 
Bank Charges 2,012 59 

12,25,026 59 

22 Other expenses 
Accounting - 2,500 
Legal & Professional 15,94,534 19,561 
Auditor's Remuneration:-
- Statutory Audit Fees 29,500 29,500 
- Fee for other services 8,850 

Fees & Taxes 12,646 3,429 
Lease Rent 16,992 16,992 
Printing & Stationery 4,000 -   
Travelling & Conveyance 39,635 - 
Unrealized loss on Equity fund 32,110 - 

17,38,267 71,982 

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED 
(formerly known as PANACEA HOSPITALITY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2021



(Amt In Rs)

NOTE  23 INCOME TAX
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 

The income tax expense consists of the following :
Current tax expense for the current period - 3,135 
Current tax expense pertaining to previous years 430 - 
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit - -
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 1,901 - 
Total income tax 2,331 3,135 

Profit / (Loss) before income taxes (6,03,107) (58,340)
Enacted Tax Rate 22.88% 22.88%
Computed Tax Expense (1,37,991) (13,348)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax
Tax impact of exempted income -                                         - 
Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed 1,37,991 16,483
Tax effect of expenses that are not dedcutible for tax purpose -                                       - 
Tax effect due to non taxable income -                                         - 
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit -                                         - 
Previously unrecognised tax losses used to reduce current tax expense -                                         - 
Other Temporary Differences 2,331 - 
Total income tax expense 2,331 3,135 

31 March 2016

NOTE  24 Earnings Per Share
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 

Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders (6,05,438) (52,389)
Weighted average number of equity shares 1,00,000 1,00,000
Nominal value per euity share 1 1
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of 
dilution 

1,00,000 1,00,000 

Earnings per equity share (6.05) (0.52)
Basic (6.05) (0.52)
Diluted

NOTE  25 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 

(A) Contingent liabilities
I Income Tax Nil Nil
II Other Legal Cases Nil Nil

- - 

(B) Capital and other commitments

Particulars
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 

Property, plant and equipment Nil Nil

NOTE  26 COLLABORATION AGREEMENT
Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited (�NBPL�) (Formerly known as Panacea Hospitality Services Private Limited) along with holding 
company named as Radhika Heights Limited (�RHL�) (formerly known as Best On Health Limited) and its three fellow subsidiaries has 
entered into a Collaboration agreement with Bestech India Pvt. Ltd. (Developer) on December 10, 2019 for applicable licensable area for joint 
development of plots under Deen Dayal Jan Awas Yojna,2016 (DDJAY).

The Developer has applied for the license under DDJAY policy in February, 2020 under the rules & regulations of Town and Country 
Planning, Haryana.

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED 
(formerly known as PANACEA HOSPITALITY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2021

Reconciliation of tax liability on book profit vis-à-vis actual tax liability 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, net of advances and not provided in the books are as follows:



NOTE  27 LEASES 

In case of assets taken on lease

Operating Leases:

The total of payments under operating lease is as under:

For the period 
ended  

31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

16,992 16,992 

NOTE  28 MSME

NOTE  29 Related Party Disclosure

a)

i) Ultimate Holding Company

ii) Holding Company
Radhika Heights Limited (Formerly known as Best On Health Limited) (RHL)

iii)

Radicura Infra Limited
Cabana Construction Private Limited 
Sundara Infra Limited
Cabana Structures Limited 

iv) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Ashwani Jain, Director
Mr. Sumit Jain, Director
Mr. Mahipati Singh, Director
Mrs. Radhika Jain, Director

v) Entities in Which KMP/relative is having Significant Influence (KMPSI)
Lakshmi & Manager Holdings Limited (�LMH�)
Trinidhi Finanace Pvt. Ltd.
White Pigeon Estate Private Limited
Panacea Life Sciences Limited
OKI Estates Pvt. Ltd.

b) Description of transactions with the related parties in the normal course of business:

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

A. Transaction made during the period
Rent paid 16,992 16,992
Loan received* 6,25,00,000 70,000
Loan repayment 50,00,000 - 
Interest paid 12,23,014 - 

B. Period end balance
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 
Outstanding loans 30,45,29,000 24,70,29,000 
Rent Outstanding - 16,992 
c

Names of Related Parties and Nature of Related Party Relationship:

Other Subsidiaries of Radhika Height Limited ( Fellow Subsidiaries)

Nirmala Organic Frams & Resorts Private Limited

Particulars

Holding Company- Radhika Heights 
Limited

Ravinder Heights Limited (Holding Company of RHL) (w.e.f. 10th September, 2020)

During the financial year, pursuant to the Change of Registered Office of the Company from the NCT of Delhi to the State of Punjab, 
Company has taken another premises admeasuring 75 sq.ft. at Ground Floor, PDS Block, Ambala-Chandigarh Highway, Lalru Punjab � 
140501, under the operating lease agreement for its Corporate office from its Holding Company. These are generally cancelable leases and 
renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms.

Particulars

Lease payments for the year recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Based on the information available with the company, there are no dues as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 payable to enterprises
covered under " Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No Interest is paid/payable by the company in terms of
Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

As required by Indian Accounting Standard -24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:



NOTE  30 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

Level 1:  Quoted (Unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(Amount In Rs)

As at 
31st March-21

As at 
31-Mar-20

Carrying Amount

14,67,815 - 

Fair Value
14,67,815 - 

Level 2 - - 

Level 3 - - 
Total - - 

4,50,00,000           - 
2,15,524 82,252 

(iii) Bank Balances other than i) above - 17,00,000 
(iv) Loans 2,25,00,000           
(v) Other Financial Assets 29,72,974 29,72,974 

7,06,88,498           47,55,226 

30,45,29,000         24,70,29,000         
2,81,05,498           2,74,13,949           
4,00,41,425           3,00,50,800           

37,26,75,923         30,44,93,749         

Carrying Amount

(ii) Trade payables

Investment

(iii) Other financial liabilities

Financial Instruments at fair value through Profit or Loss

Level 1

Total Financial Liabilities

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

Particulars

(i) Borrowings

(i) Investment
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data.

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED 
(formerly known as PANACEA HOSPITALITY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2021

The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in 
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale.The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Fair Value of cash and current deposits, trade and other current receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities
and other financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly



NOTE 31  Financial Risk Management

A. MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

Foreign currency risk

Price Risk

B. CREDIT RISK

Trade Receivables

Other Financial Assets

Provision for Expected Credit losses
Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no credit risk to the Company.

C. LIQUIDITY RISK

Contractual Maturities of financial liabilities

(Amt In Rs)

As at  31st March'2021
Less than 1 year/ On 

Demand
1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

Non Current
(i) Borrowings - 2,50,00,000 -   
Current
(i) Borrowings 27,95,29,000 -                                         -   -   
(ii) Trade payables 2,81,05,498 -                                         -   -   
(iii) Other financial liabilities 4,00,41,425 -                                         -   -   
Total 34,76,75,923 - - - 

As at  31-Mar-20
Less than 1 year/ On 

Demand
 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

Current
(i) Borrowings 24,70,29,000 -                                         -   -   
(ii) Trade payables 2,74,13,949 -                                         -   -   
(iii) Other financial liabilities 3,00,50,800 -                                         -   -   
Total 30,44,93,749 - - - 

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes
into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

p g g g p g
payments.

Price risk arises from exposure to equity securities prices from investments held by the Company. 

Credit risk is the risk that customer or counter-party will not meet its obligation under the contract, leading to financial loss. Credit risk arises from trade
receivables and other financial assets.

There are no trade receivables in the Company as at reporting date.

There is no credit risk exposure with respect to other financial assets as they are either supported by legal agreement or are with Nationalized banks.
- Loans to Others are supported with legal agreements, hence there is no credit risk involved.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when they are due.

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED 
(formerly known as PANACEA HOSPITALITY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2021

The Company�s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company�s financial risk 
management policy is set by the Managing Board. The financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company�s policies 
on risk management. Key financial risks and mitigation plans are reviewed by the board of directors of the Company.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value of future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of financial instrument. The
value of  a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, equity prices and other market changes that may effect market
sensitivity instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, loans and
borrowings.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. In
order to balance the Company�s position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to manage the interest rate risk, management performs
a comprehensive interest rate risk management. The Company has no interest bearing borrowings hence it is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as
at the respective reporting dates. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will
fluctuate because of change in market interest rates.

The Company has operations in India only hence Company�s exposure to foreign currency risk is nil. 



NOTE 32  Capital Risk Management

NOTE 33  

NOTE 34  

NOTE 35 Events after the Reporting period
There are no events observed after the reported period which have an impact on the company operations.

NOTE 36

NOTE 37 Notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these Standalone Financial .

For AAGN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 027379N/ N500115

CA. Gaurav Katiyar Sumit Jain Mahipati Singh
Partner      Director      Director

Membership No. 507950 DIN 00014236 DIN 01712664

Place : New Delhi
Dated: 20.05.2021 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited  

(Formerly known as Panacea Hospitality Services Pvt. Ltd.)

Segment Reporting
The Company is a one segment company in the business of real estate development and leasing. All its operations are located in India, accordingly, the
Company views these activities as one business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on �Segment
Reporting�.

The Company has assessed the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of Property, Plant &
Equipment, Receivables, Investments and other assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic
conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial results has used internal and external sources of
Information. The management does not see any risks in the company�s ability to continue as a going concern. The Company has used the principles of
prudence in applying judgements, estimates and assumptions and based on the current estimates, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of
all aforesaid assets. The eventual outcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of this 
financial information. Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties in
future periods, if any.

The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to shareholders.  
The capital structure of the Company is based on management�s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and 
day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic  conditions 
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company�s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity 
so as to maintain creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. There in no change in the Company 
capital structure since previous year.

Revenue from Contracts with Customer

Ind AS 115 Revenue with Contracts with Customers, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after April 1,2018, replaces existing revenue
recognition requirements. Under the modified retrospective approach there were no adjustments required to the retained earnings as at April 1 , 2018.
Application of Ind AS 115 did not have any impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the financial results.



Amount in Rs.

Particulars

A) Cash flow from operating activities (6,03,107)        (58,340) 
Net Operating profit before tax and extra ordinary items
Adjustments for:-
Depreciation 17,149 -
Profit on sale of fixed assets - -
Unrealized loss on equty funds 32,110 -
Interest Income from Banks (36,726) (13,247) 
Interest Income from NCD's (18,95,301) (454)
Fianance Cost 12,23,014 
Interest Income from Others (4,37,808) (10,97,562)      - (13,701) 
Operating profit before working capital changes (17,00,669)      (72,041) 
(Increase) / Decrease in non current Loans (2,00,00,000)               
(Increase) / Decrease in current Loans (25,00,000) -
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets (1,61,735) (13,247) 
(Increase) / Decrease in Current financial assets - 
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables 6,91,549 33,873 
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liabilities 99,90,625 2,00,06,100         
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current liabilites 97,464 (1,18,82,097)   - 2,00,26,726
Cash generated from operations (1,35,82,766)   1,99,54,685         
Net direct taxes paid 3,565              (9,086) 
Net cash from Operating Activities (1,35,86,331)   1,99,63,771         

B) Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Tangible Assets (1,27,293) -
Investment in NCD'S (4,50,00,000)               -
Investment in Equity fund (14,99,925) -
Interest received 36,726 13,247 
Interest received from NCD's 18,95,301 454 
Interest received from others 4,37,808 
Profit on redemption of Mutual Fund - -
Sale of Tangible Assets - (4,42,57,383) - 13,701
Net cash used in investing activities (5,78,43,714)   1,99,77,472         
Net cash from operating and investing activities

C) Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from non current loan 3,00,00,000 30,000 
Proceeds from current loan 3,25,00,000 -
Repayment of non current loan (50,00,000) (1,83,00,000)        
Interest paid (12,23,014) 5,62,76,986    - (1,82,70,000) 
Net cash from financing activities (15,66,728)      17,07,472            
Net cash from operating, investing & financial activities (15,66,728)      17,07,472            
Net increase in cash & cash equivalant (15,66,728)      17,07,472            
Opening balance of cash & cash equivalant 17,82,252       74,780
Closing balance of cash & cash equivalant 2,15,524         17,82,252            

Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement comprise of the following:- 
i) Cash balance in Hand 4,867              1,202
ii) Balance with Banks:

a) In Current Accounts 2,10,657         81,050
b) In Fixed Deposits - 17,00,000            
Total 2,15,524         17,82,252            

As per our attached report of even date
For AAGN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN : 027379N/ N500115

Sumit Jain Mahipati Singh
     Director      Director

DIN 00014236      DIN 01712664

Place : New Delhi
Dated: 20.05.2021 

(Formerly known as Panacea Hospitality Services Pvt. Ltd.)

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED 
(formerly known as PANACEA HOSPITALITY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Cash flow statement for the year  ending 31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited  
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